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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on The Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after
due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China E-Learning Group Limited (the "Directors”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERRE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to report the annual results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of an internet
platform for the facilitation of education program in Chinese
medicine and other advisory and training programs. This e-
learning business remained our core business in 2012. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, the Group's e-learning business
recorded a revenue of HK$41.8 million, representing a 4.1%
increase compared with last year. The loss for the year 2012 is
HK$15.2 million in contrast to a loss of HK$32.3 million for the
year 2011. Our financial performance has been significantly
improved for the year 2012.

In December 2012, the acquisition of the entire share capital of
Everjoy Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy
International Media Corporation was completed. Although the
acquisition did not make significant contribution to the
performance in 2012, this acquisition is an attempt of the Group
to expand its income stream and diversify its business.

In December 2012, the Company proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation by way of (1) the capital reduction in which
each existing share will be reduced to HK$0.10; and (2) the
sub-division of unissued shares in which each existing share in
the authorized but unissued share capital will be sub-divided
into 5 shares of HK$0.10. This capital reorganisation will enable
the Company to better respond to the market situations in
conducting capital raising exercises, including but not limited to
the issue of new shares, by providing greater flexibility to the
Company in pricing future capital raising exercises and to issue
shares at a discount to the prevailing market price timely without
going through various statutory requirements.
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PROSPECT

The Group's existing e-learning business will remain our core
business and main cash generator in the near future. This
business is expected to grow in a rather stable manner.

We will implement certain cost-effective measures to streamline
the operation so as to enhance the profitability and value of this
e-learning business.

In addition, the Company will attempt to diversify into different
business areas in order to reduce the reliance upon existing e-
learning business.

On 3 December 2012, a Strategic Cooperation Agreement was
signed between China International Culture & Image
Communication Corporation and the Company in relation to the
cooperation for projects that involve images owned by Xinhua
News Agency for a period of one year.

On 18 January 2013, an Advertisements Agency Agreement was
signed between Xinhua Gallery and the Company in relation to
the cooperation for advertising production business and
solicitation of advertisements broadcast business on the LED
Screen for a period of three years.

On 7 February 2013, a Strategic Cooperation Agreement was
signed between CybEye, Inc. and the Company in relation to
the cooperation for the technical development of mobile image
social network software and the provision of network intelligence
platforms based on image networks. The cooperation term of
the Strategic Cooperation Agreement is one year.

APPRECIATIONS

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the members of the Board of Directors, management
team and our employees for their dedication and contribution
to the Group. | would also like to express my appreciation to
our shareholders and business partners for their enduring
support and confidence in the Group.

Chen Hong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE w2

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$41,783,000 (2011:
HK$40,140,000) representing tuition fee revenue and sales of
educational products. Gross profit for the year under review was
approximately HK$28,589,000 (2011: HK$24,078,000),
representing a gross profit margin of 68.4% for the year under
review.

During the year, cost of sales was approximately HK$13,194,000
(2011: HK$16,062,000) representing the direct wages and
overheads incurred in the distance learning courses.

Other income for the year under review was approximately
HK$222,000 (2011: HK$3,188,000) representing rental income
of approximately HK$109,000 (2011: HK$46,000), a sundry
income of approximately HK$51,000 (2011: HK$1,089,000) and
no gain on redemption of convertible notes (2011:
HK$1,950,000).

Selling expenses for the year under review was approximately
HK$118,000 (2011: HK$458,000) representing the overheads
on promotional and advertising activities.

Administrative expenses for the year under review were
approximately HK$33,128,000 (2011: HK$39,561,000), of which
staff related costs were approximately HK$8,940,000 (2011:
HK$7,997,000). Consultancy fees were approximately
HK$6,532,000 (2011: HK$7,497,000) representing the costs of
conducting due diligences and obtaining financial advices with
ongoing projects.

Impairment loss on goodwill for the year under review was nil
(2011 nil).

Other expenses for the year under review were approximately
HK$3,268,000 (2011: HK$12,543,000) representing the loss on
sale of available-for-sale financial assets for approximately
HK$2,532,000 (2011: HK$106,205), and a charitable donation
for approximately HK$736,000 (2011: nil).
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Finance costs during the year were approximately HK$7,510,000
(2011: HK$6,970,000). They primarily consist of accretion of
interest on the liability portion of convertible notes of
approximately HK$7,667,000 (2011: HK$6,815,000) and fair
value changes on the derivative portion of convertible notes is
approximately HK$157,000 gain (2011: HK$155,000 loss).

As a result, the consolidated loss for the year under review was
approximately HK$15,213,000 (2011: loss of HK$32,266,000).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial
resources

The Group financed its business operations mainly with cash
revenue generated internally from operating activities and
additional funds raised by issuance of shares. As at 31 December
2012, the Group has current assets of approximately
HK$102,267,000 (2011: HK$116,219,000), including bank
balances and cash of approximately HK$22,309,000 (2011:
HK$19,459,000). Total non-current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$69,934,000 (2011:
HK$7,569,000), which comprised goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, and available-for-sale financial assets. Total assets
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$172,201,000
(2011: HK$123,788,000) as at 31 December 2012.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank borrowing. Total current liabilities of the Group
were HK$127,016,000 (2011: HK$112,397,000), which mainly
comprised trade and other payables, convertible notes and the
related financial derivatives. Total non-current liabilities of the
Group were approximately HK$68,024,000 (2011:
HK$26,105,000), which comprised the convertible notes. Total
liabilities of the Group were approximately HK$195,040,000
(2011: HK$138,502,000). As at 31 December 2012, the Group
had net liabilities of HK$22,839,000 (2011: HK$14,714,000 net
liabilities).

On 27 August 2012, a Bank Strategic Cooperation Agreement
was signed between Bank of Shanghai and the Group in relation
to the advancement by Bank of Shanghai to the Group a line of
credit of RMB100,000,000 (One Hundred Million Renminbi) per
year for a period of five years. During the year 2012, the Group
did not make any drawing under this credit facility. The Group
will consider utilising this credit facility when necessary.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE w2

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio of the Group, as expressed as the ratio of total
liabilities to total assets, was approximately 1.1 as at
31 December 2012 (2011: 1.1).

Share Capital

As at 1 January 2012, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.50 each and the issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$732,171,000 divided into
1,464,341,820 shares of HK$0.50 each.

During the year, shares were issued upon conversion of
convertible notes as follows:

Principal amount of

Date of conversion

HRAH

convertible notes
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732,171,000/ 7T © % A1,464,341,8200% B E &
0.508 T2 &fh °

FA - AEBTBEZEMETIROMOT

Number of
shares issued
FrETRHBEE

Conversion
price
BRE

13 January 2012 —F--%—-A+=H 3,750,000 1.01 3,712,871
13 July 2012 —E-—_F+HA+=H 3,862,454 1.01 3,824,211
7,612,454 7,637,082

As at 31 December 2012, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$5,000,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.50 each and the issued share capital of the
Company was approximately HK$735,939,451 divided into
1,471,878,902 shares of HK$0.50 each.
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Convertible Notes
Convertible Notes 2009

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical (BVI)
Group, the Company issued convertible notes (“Convertible
Notes 2009”) as partial settlement of the acquisition
consideration on 23 April 2009. The aggregate principal of the
Convertible Notes 2009 amounted to HK$32,770,000. The
Convertible Notes 2009 are interest free, with a principal amount
of approximately HK$20,150,000 maturing in 48 months from
the date of issue and the remaining principal amount of
approximately HK$12,620,000 maturing in 24 months from the
date of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion
price of HK$1.01 (2010: HK$1.57) per share, subject to
adjustments.

On 15 July 2010, an aggregate principal of the Convertible Notes
2009 amounted to HK$6,780,000 were issued as the final
payment for the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
[IN Medical (BVI) Group. The Convertible Notes 2009 are interest
free, with a principle amount of HK$4,154,106 maturing in 48
months from the date of issue and the remaining principal
amount of HK$2,625,894 maturing in 24 months from the date
of issue and convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price
of HK$1.01 per share, subject to adjustments.

As at 1 January 2012, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Notes was HK$10,162,155 (2010:
HK$25,620,217). The exercise in full of conversion rights vested
with the Company’s outstanding Convertible Notes 2009 would
result in the issue and allotment of 10,061,540 new shares in
the Company.

In addition to the conversion of the Convertible Notes 2009 as
shown above, Convertible Note 2009 in the principal amount of
HK$2,537,480 were redeemed during the period under review.
As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Notes 2009 was approximately
HK$12,000. The exercise in full of conversion rights vested with
the Company’s outstanding Convertible Notes 2009 would result
in the issue and allotment of 12,100 new shares of the Company.
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Convertible Notes 2011

The Group had reached several agreements with the holders of
the Convertible Notes 2008 which became mature on
28 February 2011, and a promissory note for approximately
HK$50 million for a settlement. In order to be able to raise
sufficient fund for the settlement, the Group issued two tranches
of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes 2011 A”) on 9 May 2011
and (“Convertible Notes 2011 B”) on 11 May 2011.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 A amounted
to HK$89,999,934, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
maturing in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible
into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share,
subject to adjustments.

The aggregate principal of Convertible Notes 2011 B amounted
to HK$36,200,000, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, initially
maturing in 6 months from the date of issue, and convertible
into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share,
subject to adjustments. On 11 November 2011, the maturity
date was successfully postponed for another 6 months to 11
May 2012. Upon maturity, the principal amount together with
the interests due were fully settled by a promissory note.

As at 31 December 2012, the outstanding principal amount of
the Convertible Notes 2011 A was HK$29,999,934. The exercise
in full of the vested conversion rights would result in the issue
and allotment of 59,999,868 new shares of the Company.

On 21 July 2011, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with a group of independent subscribers for the
issuance of some convertible notes in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$42,000,000, bearing an interest rate of 3% per
annum, maturing in 12 months from the date of issue, and
convertible into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50
per share, subject to adjustments. Subsequently, the Group
issued two tranches of convertible notes (“Convertible Notes
2011 C”) on 25 August 2011 for the principal amount of
HK$19,500,000 and (“Convertible Notes 2011 D”) on 14
September 2011 for the principal amount of HK$22,500,000.
Of which, tranche C was fully converted in 2011. On 10
September 2012, the maturity date of the tranche D was
postponed for another 6 months to 7 March 2013.
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As at 31 December 2012, the outstanding principal amount of
the Convertible Notes 2011 D were HK$22,500,000. The
exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result in
the issue and allotment of 45,000,000 new shares of the
Company. A noteholder obtained a court order for the principal
amount of HK$9,700,000 forcing the payment of debt on 3
January 2013. The Company has complied in full.

Convertible Notes 2012

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation, the Company issued
convertible notes (‘ETCN-1, and ETCN-2") as partial settlement
of the acquisition consideration on 20 December 2012. The
aggregate principal of the ETCN-1 and ETCN-2 amounted to
HK$9,611,906, bearing an interest of 1% per annum, maturing
in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible into ordinary
shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share, subject to
adjustments.

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the ETCN-1 and ETCN-2 was HK$9,611,906. The
exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result in
the issue and allotment of 19,223,812 new shares of the
Company.

Pursuant to the acquisition of 100% interest in Everjoy
International Media Corporation, the Company issued convertible
notes (“EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3”) as partial settlement of
the acquisition consideration on 20 December 2012. The
aggregate principal of the EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3 amounted
to HK$58,235,956, bearing an interest of 1% per annum,
maturing in 36 months from the date of issue, and convertible
into ordinary shares at conversion price of HK$0.50 per share,
subject to adjustments.

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate outstanding principal
amount of the EICN-1, EICN-2 and EICN-3 was HK$58,235,956.
The exercise in full of the vested conversion rights would result
in the issue and allotment of 116,471,912 new shares of the
Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Capital reorganisation

On 4 December 2012, the Company proposed to implement
the capital reorganisation by way of (1) the capital reduction;
and (2) the sub-division of unissued shares. Pursuant to the
capital reduction, the issued share capital of the Company will
be reduced by HK$0.40 per existing share by cancelling an
equivalent amount of paid-up capital per existing share in issue
so that the par value of each new share in issue will be HK$0.10
and the relevant amount of issued capital thereby cancelled will
be made available for issue of new shares. Each existing share
in the authorized but unissued share capital of the Company
was proposed to be sub-divided into 5 shares of a nominal value
of HK$0.10 each.

The proposal was approved in an extraordinary general meeting
on 18 February 2013 and subject to further legal proceedings in
Cayman lIslands.

Foreign exchange exposure

Most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Although the
exchange rate between Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi has
been moderately changing, it remains relatively stable. As the
expenditure in PRC was covered by the sales in PRC, the
management considers that the Group has no significant foreign
exchange exposures. Foreign exchange risk arising from the
normal course of operations is considered as minimal. As at
31 December 2012, the Group has no foreign currency
borrowings and has not used any financial instrument for hedging
the foreign exchange risk.

Significant investments and material
acquisition

On 20 December 2012, the Group announced the completion
of the major transactions on the acquisition of 100%
shareholding interest in Everjoy Technology Development
Corporation (“ET”) and Everjoy International Media Corporation
(“EI”). The aggregate consideration for the sale and purchase of
the ET Sale Shares is HK$21,000,000, where the same for the
El Sale Shares is HK$75,600,000.
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According to the audited results of both ET and El for the year
ended 31 December 2011, the convertible notes issued
respectively to ET amount to a principal amount of
HK$9,611,906, in addition to the HK$8,000,000 paid in cash;
and to El amount to a principal amount of HK$58,235,956, in
addition to the HK$2,000,000 paid in cash.

Contingent liabilities and charges on the
Group’s assets

There were no significant contingent liabilities or charges on the
Group’s assets as at 31 December 2012 (2011: nil).

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

The Joint Construction of Network Education College of Beijing
University of Chinese Medicine Agreement (3721t 7 F B8 & K
BREHEERRH#E) (“Joint Construction Agreement”)
entered into between Beijing University of Chinese Medicine (Jb
R B %K E2) and Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology
Development Co., Ltd. (“Hunan IIN Medical”), a subsidiary of
[IN Medical (BVI), on 29 July 2009 was successfully renewed on
1 July 2010. In accordance with the Joint Construction
Agreement, Hunan IIN Medical’s entitlement to share 60% of
the profits of Distance Education College of Beijing University of
Chinese Medicine (It 7 /1 B8 22 K 2 iR 12 2 5 2 Bt) (“Distance
Education College”) is reduced to 51% profit-sharing percentage
during the year 2010 while all other terms and conditions
thereunder are no less favourable than those under the Joint
Construction Agreement.

The completion of the major transactions on the acquisition of
Everjoy Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy
International Media Corporation does not have any material
contribution on current year’s operation.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 43 employees
(2011: 43 employees) (including executive directors). For the
year under review, the total staff costs amounted to
approximately HK$13,755,000 (2011: HK$16,072,000),
representing a reduction of approximately 14.4% over the
previous year.
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The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees were kept
at a market level and employees were rewarded on a
performance-related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s salary and bonus system, which is reviewed annually.
Staff benefits include contribution to the mandatory provident
fund and share options. No share options were granted to
employees of the Group in the current year, whereby comparative
details are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

PROSPECTS

During the year 2012, the Group has expanded its horizon into
new business sectors, bringing new business elements into the
existing technological base. The proposal for an extension to
medical health services has been initiated and achieved
progress. The Group will continue its efforts in 2013 and expect
material outcome.

In December 2012, the acquisition of the entire share capital of
Everjoy Technology Development Corporation and Everjoy
International Media Corporation was completed. Although the
acquisition did not make significant contribution to the
performance in 2012, this acquisition is an attempt of the Group
to expand its income stream and diversify its business.

Meanwhile, the Group will continue to look for opportunities for
our existing business, particularly in developing both vertically
and horizontally within the Group’s medical education platform,
expanding further into our service network, increase the
shareholders’ value and reduce business risk.

On 3 December 2012, a Strategic Cooperation Agreement was
signed between China International Culture & Image
Communication Corporation and the Company in relation to the
cooperation for projects that involve images owned by Xinhua
News Agency for a period of one year.

On 18 January 2013, an Advertisements Agency Agreement was
signed between Xinhua Gallery and the Company in relation to
the cooperation for advertising production business and
solicitation of advertisements broadcast business on the LED
Screen for a period of three years.

On 7 February 2013, a Strategic Cooperation Agreement was
signed between CybEye, Inc. and the Company in relation to
the cooperation for the technical development of mobile image
social network software and the provision of network intelligence
platforms based on image networks. The cooperation term of
the Strategic Cooperation Agreement is one year.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Hong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 44, was appointed as an
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company on 1 April
2008; and the authorised representative and compliance officer
of the Company on 22 September 2008, Mr. Chen holds a Master
of Business Administration from Peking University, China. Mr.
Chen has previously worked in several technology companies
and investment companies in China as senior management, and
had extensive experience in corporate management and
investment. Mr. Chen is mainly responsible for the strategy
formulation of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Chen did not hold any directorships
in any listed public company in the last four years.

Ms. Wei Jianya (“Ms. Wei”), aged 44, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 22 September 2008. Ms. Wei holds a
Bachelor’s degree in commerce and financial accounting from
Zhejiang Gongshang University (formerly known as Hangzhou
University of Commerce). Ms. Wei is a Certified Public
Accountant registered in the PRC and Chinese Certified Public
Tax Consultant. She previously worked in PRC accounting firms
and PRC listed companies and has extensive experience in
financial management and investment advisory.

Save as disclosed herein, Ms. Wei did not hold any directorship
in any listed public company in the last four years.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Li Xiangjun (“Mr. Li”), aged 41, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 7 December 2012. Mr. Li
received a bachelor degree in law in the People’s Republic of
China in 1996. In 20083, he obtained the certificate of graduation
from the master degree program for international economic law
of the University of International Business and Economics in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr. Li has been engaged in the legal
services industry since 1999. He is currently a practising lawyer
in the People’s Republic of China and a member of the Beijing
Lawyers Association. He used to be the Corporate Law
Consultant or Legal Consultant for Special Affairs for large state-
owned enterprises, including China FAW Group, Lenovo Group
and China Life Insurance Group, and large foreign enterprises,
including Asia Link Group Inc., Zhenglin Food Co., Ltd. and
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Dongguan Hsu Chi Foods Co. Limited. From 22 September 2008
to 11 June 2009, Mr. Li was an executive director of the
Company. From 24 June 2010 to 22 October 2012, Mr. Li was
an independent non-executive director of Superb Summit
International Group Limited (stock code: 1228), whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Since 11 June 2009, Mr.
Li has been a director of China E-Learning (Hong Kong)
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
Save as disclosed herein, prior to this appointment, Mr. Li does
not hold any position with the Company and its subsidiaries
and he does not hold any directorship in other listed companies
nor has any other major appointment or qualification in the last
three years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (“Mr. Cheung”), aged 60, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director and the chairman of
the audit committee on 11 June 2010. Mr. Cheung has more
than twenty years of working experience in the investment
banking and accounting field. Mr. Cheung is a Certified Public
Accountant in California, United States of America, and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated with an MBA degree from
the University of California at Berkeley, the United States of
America in 1981. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of China
Grand Forestry Green Resources Group Limited (910) during
the period from October 2007 to September 2009, and was an
independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic Group
Limited (1188) during the period from April 2007 to November
2007.

Mr. Cheung is an independent non-executive director of Superb
Summit International Timber Company Limited (1228).

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheung does not hold any other
position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he
hold any directorship in any public listed company in the last
three years.
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Dr. Huang Chung Hsing (“Dr. Huang”), aged 59, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and a
member of audit committee of the Company on 14 August 2008.
Dr. Huang holds a Ph.D. degree in Management Science and
Information Systems from the University of Texas at Austin,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor’s degree of Science in Electrical
Engineering from National Taiwan University. Dr. Huang is the
Associate Dean of College of Management, National Taiwan
University. He is also the chairman of the Committee of Service
Management of Chinese Management Association in Taiwan and
the associate researcher of Health Management Center of
National Taiwan University Hospital in Taiwan. He has previously
held senior positions in various universities and banks such as
Beijing University in China and Bank of SinoPac. Dr. Huang has
extensive experience in service operation management, business
decision making and management of innovation.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Huang does not hold any other
position in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did he
hold any directorship in any public listed company in the last
three years.

Ms. Li Bailing (“Ms. Li”), aged 44, graduated from Xi’an
International Studies University in China in 1990. Ms. Li started
her career in the Beijing office of the People’s Government of
Jilin Province in 1990, and subsequently served as representative
of the Beijing offices for various companies. Ms. Li currently
serves as manager of BONELLI Top Sourcing At RE i /1 X E
£ AR A 7)), and has rich managerial experiences in science
and technology companies.

Save as disclosed above, Ms. Li does not hold any other position
in the Company or any of its subsidiaries nor did she hold any
directorship in any public listed company in the last three years.
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of China
E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) presents herewith
the annual report together with the audited financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group'’s results for the year ended 31 December 2012 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 42 to 144.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any final dividend
in respect of the reporting year (2011: HK$ nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the audited consolidated results
of the Group for each of the five years ended 31 December

2012 prepared on the basis set out in the note below:
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2012 2011
—®--F ~F——%

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET B B B BT

Turnover BEE 41,783 40,140 38,575 23,253 26,692
Loss before tax BERIES 15,213 32,266 52,079 475,636 364,403
Net loss after tax BitEERTE 15,213 32,266 52,079 475,378 365,862
Total assets BELA 172,201 123,788 111,400 94,556 457,127
Total liabilities BESE 195,040 138,502 163,282 330,862 394,324
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Movements of property, plant and equipment are set out in note
18 to the financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 20
to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 26 and 34 to the financial statements
respectively.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Details of movements in the Company’s convertible notes during
the year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 48 and note 27 to the
financial statement respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company did not have any reserve
available for cash distribution (2011: HK$ nil). In accordance
with the laws of the Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles
of Association, the Company’s share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debt as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions of pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2012.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE
OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Group and the Company did not have any management
services contract for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
2011.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to HK$736,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable

to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

BEABRE

RARMABERMAKASHES AT ELBEL
R 28X BEAD R AR 51738 A IR 3
EARD -

RANBRERE

REE—ZE——F+=-_A=+—
ARl —HHEFBEHZ ARFR

BE BOxHEAR
i 5

ARRAREFMAMBRARARENBEBE - BEK

HEARRBERLETHESR °

BEEEH

BE_T—_HR-_FT——F+t-_A=t—HL#HF
B REBRARRMERTETMAEEREELH -

nBE

FA -

=k
TA

B
x

S8 2 EREHBFAE736,000/8 7T °

TEEFRHAER

ZIR’E BrFrEXFPREERERFERNMLEE REE
DLW

Sales HE
- the largest customer —mAEP
- five largest customer —RAREP
Purchases e
- the largest supplier —EAHER
- five largest suppliers —RAAHEER
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Students are our major customers. It is therefore not applicable
to provide the largest and the five largest customers’
percentages on our revenue income.

None of the Directors, their associates or shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers
or suppliers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the financial year and at
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Hong
Ms. Wei Jianya

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Li Xiangjun
Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing
Ms. Li Bailing

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
Executive Directors the annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent
to the Group in accordance with the terms of the guidelines as
set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

In accordance with Article 87 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Chen Hong, Mr. Li Xiangjun and Ms. Li Bailing
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wei Jianya have entered into service
contracts with the Company for a term of three years. These
service contracts may be terminated by either party giving not
less than three months’ notice to the other party.

All the Non-Executive Director and Independent Non-Executive
Directors have entered into service contracts with the Company
for a term of three years.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

No contracts of signilficance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid employees in the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements respectively.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including its Directors,
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits include insurance and medical
cover as well as share option scheme. Details of share option
scheme are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

The determination of remuneration of the Directors of the
Company had taken into consideration of their expertise and
job specifications.
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SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

A new share option scheme was approved and adopted in the
Annual General Meeting of the Company on 23 May 2011. No
share options have been granted since then.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHARE OPTIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), which were
required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO;
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

Long positions

BT E

RARRZZE——FRA-T=BRITZREBEF
RE HER RS —IRFEREE - AAF I
Z & AR AT AT B AR

EERFTETHRAERRORE
BRRE S

RZE——F+_A=1+—H XRRAESHFZE
TERAEBRARB REEBZE (EEXRFHFLHAE
1665 ([B5HREAEEF]) FEXVED) 2D - HHEERH
REEBPFE @BEESF KA EGEXVIBETR
8D EPBXEARA R R RZ AT Z sk AR + SK(0)iR
BE S M HAE 555 3521548 & AL SRR 15 5z 1& 51
FEGzERMzikm kAR  ROBBAIZER L
T8 B 5. 46 & B A€ NN A) R EE R BT 2 M o K0k
BT

3y ¥

Number of shares or

underlying shares held Percentage
s RAERER A E A of issued
Name of Directors Ordinary Share share capital
and Chief Executive Capacity shares options Total HE 1T
EERFETHRARESE 54 ZER iR AE Azt A H DL
Chen Hong (Director) Beneficial owner 79,510,480 6,377,306 85,887,786 5.84%
Rz (EE) EREAA
Wang Hui (Chief Executive)  Beneficial owner - 6,377,306 6,377,306 0.43%
FTEETHAEE) EREAA
Wei Jianya (Director) Beneficial owner = 2,349,534 2,349,534 0.16%
Ef2(BF) EREAA
Li Xiangjun (Director) Beneficial owner 313,590 4,000,000 4,313,590 0.29%
PHRE (EF) EREAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
other Directors or chief executive of the Company had any
interest or short position in shares, debentures or underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations which
was required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO;
or (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rule 5.46 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests in shares and share options” above and
“Share option scheme” in Note 34, at no time during the year
was the Group, or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the Group or
any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSABLE UNDER
THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, so far as known to any Director or
chief executive of the Company, the following persons (other
than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long position in shares or underlying shares
of the Company

Name of Shareholder

Capacity
IRR & B 54

Beneficial owner

ExmEBA

Yang Dong Jun

BRE

Atlantis Capital Holdings Limited Investment manager
REKRE

Liu Yang (note)
2l ()

corporation
REEEE 2w

Note: According to the disclosure of interests notice filed, Ms. Liu
Yang is deemed to be in control of Atlantis Capital Holdings
Limited, Ms. Liu Yang is deemed to be interested in the
88,002,000 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons (other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review, neither the Directors nor the
substantial shareholders of the Company and their respective
associates had any interest in business that competes, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Interest of a controlled

RAERRRGBEBRG 2F R

Number of shares Percentage
or underlying of issued
shares held share capital

Fris IR 43 =R HE BT
HERG & B RAE 2L
207,554,896 14.10%
88,002,000 5.98%
88,002,000 5.98%

Mk © BIBHBEZBANE - 2R L2 T8 BAtlantis
Capital Holdings Limited 2 ZER% B 3R+ A 1tE 258 22
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AUDITORS = ELEm

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general JEEMFBETAE LHBIRERRER  BEEHE(F
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA ) RETEBER AR AERAGZEED
Limited as auditors of the Company.

On Behalf of the Board REESE

Chen Hong HITEFE

Executive Director R &=

Hong Kong B

22 March 2013 —E—=F=ZA=+=H
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Corporate Governance Report

TRERHRE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and believes that good corporate
governance can (i) enhance management effectiveness and
efficiency; (i) increase the transparency of the Company; (iii)
enhance risk management and internal control of the Company
and (iv) safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as a whole.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
COMPLIANCE

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange which sets out the principles of good corporate
governance, the provisions of the Code (the “Code Provisions”)
and the recommended best practices, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all the Code Provisions as set
out in the Code during the year ended 31 December 2012, with
the exception of deviation set out below.

GEM Listing Rules 5.05(1) stipulates that the Board of Directors
of the Company must include three independent non-executive
Directors. During the period from 19 October 2012 to 17 January
2013, the Company only had two Independent non-executive
Directors in the Board as one of the independent non-executive
director, Mr. Wu Tao, resigned on 19 October 2012, and the
Company appointed Ms. Li Bailing as the Independent Non-
Executive Director on 18 January 2013. The Company has
deviated the GEM Listing Rules 5.05 (1) for a short period as it
takes time to find and appoint the appropriate person to be the
independent non-executive Director. Currently the Company
complies with the relevant rule.

The Board of Directors of the Company regularly monitors and
reviews the Group’s progress in respect of corporate governance
practices to ensure compliance.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group has adopted a code of
conduct regarding securities transactions in securities of the
Company by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance
with the required standard as set out in the code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
MEETING

Board Composition

The Board of Directors currently comprises two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wei Jianya, one Non-
Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Xiangjun and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Wai Tak, Dr. Huang
Chung Hsing, and Ms. Li Bailing. The Board is responsible for
the overall management of the Group. It focuses on directing
the corporate strategies and supervising the business and
significant affairs of the Group while the duties of the daily
operation management are delegated to the management of
the Company. Biographical details of the Directors are set out
on pages 15 to 17 of this annual report.

Mr. Chen Hong and Ms. Wang Hui are the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company respectively and their roles
are clearly segregated, with a clear division of their responsibilities
complying Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code. Mr. Chen Hong is
the chairman whose role is to provide leadership for the Board
and provide the Group with strategic direction in consultation
with the Board in a timely manner to ensure effectiveness of the
Board, whereas Ms. Wang Hui, the chief executive officer, is
responsible for the strategic planning of its various business
units, and day-to-day management of its operation.
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Mr. Li Xiangjun is appointed as the non-executive Director of
the Company on 7 December 2012 for a period of three years
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and
GEM Listing Rules.

Under Code Provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election
while all Directors should be subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years.

All Non-Executive and Independent Non-Executive Directors
were appointed for a specific term of 3 years and they are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company in line with the Articles of Association.
As such, the Company is of the view that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting that those in the Code.

Board and General Meetings

The Board meets regularly. During the year ended 31 December
2012, there were 24 board meetings and 2 general meetings
held to discuss the overall strategy, the operation and financial
performance of the Group, and to approve important matters
such as the annual results, quarterly results, interim results and
dividends, the Group’s businesses and investments, etc. The
attendance of each Director at the board meetings and general
meetings are set out as follows:

FHEXRER T —F+_ALREZELER
RIFRTES  RHI=F - EARBAQRNAS
ERAA ([AREERAMA]) RAIZER ETHRARA
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BRERREATmEBRERE  AEE22ENRMBR
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B MERAGZEHHINMAT

Attendance of
General Meeting

Attendance of

Board Meeting

EZgeRtERR BREAEHELE
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Chen Hong BR 7R 5 24/24 2/2
Ms. Wei Jianya ERG T 24/24 0/2
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. Li Xiangjun TME LA 0/24 0/2
(appointed on 7 December 2012) (R=ZZE—=F
+-—AtREZRMT)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFHITES
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak REREAE 12/24 1/2
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing HREEELT 11/24 0/2
Mr. Wu Tao WS
(resigned on 19 October 2012) (R=ZZT—=—F
TAT BT 16/24 1/2
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The company secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes
are normally circulated to Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open
for Directors’ inspection.

The executive Directors and senior management meet regularly
to review company business matters and escalate the matters
to the Board meeting for further discussion if necessary. The
Board and the Directors can seek independent professional
advice whenever necessary at the Company’s expenses.
Furthermore, they can have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are
duly complied with and advising the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

In accordance to the Board’s current practice and Code Provision
A.1.7 of the Code, any material transaction involving a conflict
of interests for a substantial shareholder or a Director will be
considered and dealt with by the Board by a duly convened
Board meeting. It also requires the Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

In Compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company now has three independent non-
executive directors representing half of the Board with one of
them having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. However, during the
period from 19 October 2012 to 17 January 2013, the Company
only had two Independent Non-Executive Directors in the Board
as one of the independent non-executive director, Mr. Wu Tao,
resigned on 19 October 2012, and the Company appointed
Ms. Li Bailing as the Independent Non-Executive Director on
18 January 2013. The Company has deviated the Rules 5.05
(1) for a short period as it takes time to find and appoint the
appropriate person to be the independent non-executive director.
Curretnly it has complied with the relevant Rules after the
appointment of Ms. Li Bailing as the independent non-executive
director. Each of the independent non-executive Directors is
appointed for a period of three years.
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The Company has, through the nomination committee of the
Board, reviewed the independence of, and received an
appointment and annual confirmation of independence from,
each of the independent non-executive Directors, and considers
all the independent non-executive Directors independent in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

Delegation to Board Committee and
Management

The Board has the overall responsibility for business
development, leadership, management and control of the Group
and is responsible for promoting the success of the Group by
directing, supervising and monitoring the Group’s affairs. It has
established three committees, namely the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee. All of the
committees have written terms of reference in accordance with
the Code. More details of these committees are set out in
separate sections of this report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executives Directors and CEO to faciliate the efficient day to
day management of the Group’s business. In addition, the Board
delegates to the Remuneration Committee authorities to
determine remuneration for executive directors and members
of senior management.

Continuous Professional Development

All Directors should keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities as Directors and of the business and activities
of the Group. Directors receive regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s
business and to environments in which the Group operates, as
well as their responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws,
rules and regulations to ensure compliance and enhance their
awareness of good corporate governance practices. Directors
are also encouaged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company’s expenses.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors
participated in the continuous professional developments in
relation to regulatory updates, the duties and responsibility of
the Directors and the business of the Group in the following
manner:

BE_Z——_H+-_A=+—RILFE EFEB
NTHX2REHEEETHEHIRNAE  EFZ2HB
BRBERAKERFE HEERERLD ¢

Training received (Yes/No)

®m2IEI (R B)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chen Hong B R o Yes
Ms. Wei Jianya BRGT Yes2
Non-Executive Director FHITES

Mr. Li Xiangjun (appointed on 7 December 2012) EMELGSE (WNZE——F+_A+tRHEZMF) Yess2
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYFHTES

Mr. Cheung Wai Tak REEREE

Dr. Huang Chung Hsing mEHEE L YesiE
Mr. Wu Tao (resigned on 19 October 2012) RErtdE(RZE—=F+ATNLBEED Yesz

Training received included:

A attending internal/external briefing/seminar session in relation
to corporate governance; or

B reading materials in relation to regulatory update

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee on 26 November
2001 with written terms of reference for the purpose of reviewing
and supervising the Company’s financial reporting and internal
control procedures in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The
committee comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Cheung Wai Tak (the chairman of the committee), Dr.
Huang Chung Hsing, Mr. Wu Tao (resigned on 19 October 2012)
and Ms. Li Bailing (appointed on 18 January 2013).

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group, to review the audit plan, audit findings
and independence of the auditors of the Company, to review the
Group’s financial information and financial statements, annual
reports, interim reports and quarterly reports, and to provide advice
and recommendation thereon to the Board.
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The Board also delegated certain corporate governance
functions to the audit committee, including the review and
monitoring of (a) the Group's policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board; (b) the
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management; (c) the Group's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) the
code of conduct of the Group applicable to employees and
Directors; and (e) the Group's compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the audit committee
held 4 meetings to approve the nature and scope of the statutory
audits, and review the annual, interim, quarterly consolidated
financial statements of the Group, and details of the attendance

of each member of the committee are set out as follows:

ESRRETREXREABEZRTERZES

%ﬁﬁ&?ﬂﬁ$%IZ¢% =R BR M AE A
TRESSREEESR  OEEhSREEAR
MIEIIRBEERER () AREEETEARRE
EREIENBRRNER () AREREERESH
BF A R AKEETTRNBEARELEE
AWENHIE -

HE-ZT——F+-A=+—HILEFE  EZZ8
SERRITAREGH  MEZEEZ 2L REBEL
BHAKEZEE  PH FTERAMBRE &
BREREEENEB 2 HFEEFIBTRINAT ¢

Committee Members Attendance
EREBEEHE o RC 8%
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak KBRS A 4/4
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing EmREB L 2/4
Mr. Wu Tao (resigned 19 October 2012) RELE(RZE—=-F+ATLEBEM 3/4

The minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary. The draft and final versions of the minutes
are circulated to all committee members for their comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting.

The Board has not taken any different view from that of the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of the external auditor.

The Company’s annual audited results for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established on 23 March 2005
with major functions of (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policies and structure for the remuneration
of Directors and senior management of the Group; (i) determining
the remuneration packages of all Directors and senior
management of the Group; and (i) reviewing and approving the
performance-based remuneration. The remuneration
committee’s terms of reference are generally aligned with the
requirement of Code Provision B.1.2.

The remuneration committee of the Company is chaired by
Mr. Chen Hong. Other members include Mr. Cheung Wai Tak,
Mr. Wu Tao (resigned on 19 October 2012) and Ms. Li Bailing
(appointed on 18 January 2013). The majority of the members
of the remuneration committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, one meeting of the
remuneration committee was held. All members of the
remuneration committee, at the time being, attended the
meeting. The Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors
and senior management was discussed in the meeting and no
changes on the policy were recommended by the remuneration
committee.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the nomination committee on
23 March 2012 with major functions of (i) to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and
experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
select or make recommendations to the Board on the selection
of individuals nominated for directorships; and (iii) To make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors,
in particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive.
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The nomination committee of the Company is chaired by
Mr. Chen Hong. Other members include Mr. Cheung Wai Tak
and Dr. Huang Chung Hsing. The majority of the members of
the nomination committee are independent non-executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, one meeting of the
nomination committee was held. All members of the nomination
committee, at the time being, attended the meeting to perform
the aforesaid functions.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration of the audit service provided by the auditor of
the Group to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
was mutually agreed in view of the scope of services, amounting
to HK$260,000. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
auditor provided tax service of fee HK$3,000 to the Group and
also served as a reporting accountant in the major transaction
with the fee of HK$600,000.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for the establishment and
maintenance of an adequate and effective internal control system
to safeguard the Group’ assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, and to protect the interests of shareholders of the
Company (collectively “internal controls”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has
conducted a review, which covered the major control procedures
in areas of financial and operations of the Company on the
internal control system of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control procedures.
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BUSINESS ETHICS AND
PROFESSIONAL CODE OF
CONDUCTS

The Group puts high standards on business ethics and
professional conducts expected of all employees. Employees
are briefed regularly on the code of ethics and on the conducts
of keeping confidentiality of the information of business partners
and the Group. Briefings on the code of ethics and on the
conducts are held for new employees during orientation
sessions.

The Group also adopts good employment standards of non-
discrimination policy and fair compensation scheme.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The responsibilities of the Directors for preparing the financial
statements and the auditor’s reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements are set out in the auditor’s report contained
in this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Articles 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) may be convened by the
Board on a written requisition of any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meeting
of the Company. The EGM shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene the EGM, the
requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) of the
Company.
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Enquiries put to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in respect

of their rights to the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meeting

There is no provision for shareholders to propose resolutions at
a general meeting under the Cayman Islands Companies Law.
However, shareholders can follow the above procedure and

request to convene an EGM.

Procedures for nominating a new director

(0

(i

(ii)

If a Shareholder wish to propose a person (the
“Candidate”) for election as a director of the Company
at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a Notice at
the Company’s Head Office at Unit 2610, 26th Floor,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, No. 1 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong (Attention to the Board of Directors
and the company secretary) or the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong;

The Notice must (i) include the personal information of
the Candidate as required by Rule 17.50 (2) of the GEM
Listing Rules; and (ii) be signed by the Shareholder
concerned and signed also by the Candidate indicating
his/her willingness to be elected and consent of
publication of his/her personal information;

Where the Notice is submitted after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election,
the period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence
on the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting and no later than seven days prior to the date of
such general meeting. In any case, the minimum length
of the period during which any Notice to be given shall
be at least seven days;
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(iv) In order to allow the Shareholders sufficient time to receive
and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a director of the Company, Shareholders are
encouraged to submit and lodge the Notice as early as
practicable.

Articles of Association

There was no change to the Articles of Association to the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2012.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update the latest business development and financial
performance including the publication of quarterly, interim and
annual reports, the publish and posting of notices,
announcements and circulars on the GEM website and the
Company’s website in a timely manner in order to maintain a
high level of transparency, and to ensure there is no selective
disclosure of inside information.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B MR

To the shareholders of
China E-Learning Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 42 to 144, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As explained in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$
30,397,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012 and, as of
that date, the Group’s had net liabilities of HK$ 22,839,000.
The Group would require additional amount of cash flow from
operation and/or financing in the forthcoming year to support
the future operation of the Company, there would be an
uncertainty on having sufficient net cash inflow to support the
Group’s ability to continue its operation as a going concern.

QUALIFIED OPINION

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012,
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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EMPHASIS OF MATTER

We would like to draw your attention to the following matters
that are related to the audit of the Group for year ended
31 December, 2012:-

1.Everjoy International Media Corporation and Everjoy
Technology Development Corporation (“Two Acquirees”), which
have been acquired by the Group in the year ended
31 December, 2012, do not have operating profits, the Group
has planned to achieve the generation of future cash flow to
support the value of this investment and the accompanying
Goodwill that would depend on the future business operation of
these Two Acquirees that are being uncertain as at the date of
the Report, there may be a potential impairment on the Goodwill
resulting from and the investment value of the Two Acquirees
purchased during the period ended 31 December, 2012.

2.The Group has been contracting with an independent third-
party for the construction of the “The Third Generation Ticketing
System” are still under construction and there is no additional
information being available to us for the assessment on the
readiness of the said system for fair value measurement, though
the Group has stated that it has been managing the development
of such system with the independent third-party as at the date
of the Report. There may be a potential impairment on value of
the said system in future depending on whether there is any
available information on the assessment on the fair value of the
investment in such system being under development.

Parker Randall CF (H.K.) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Seto Man Fai
Practising Certificate No.: P05229

Hong Kong
22 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—— %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Revenue Y &5 8 41,783 40,140
Cost of sales 5 & AR (13,194) (16,062)
Gross profit EH 28,589 24,078
Other income HAth Y &1 9 222 3,188
Selling expenses SHERMZ (118) (458)
Administrative expenses THAE (33,128) (39,561)
Other expenses HaF X (8,268) (12,543)
Finance costs, net BLE KA F R 10 (7,510) (6,970)
Loss before tax MRELAIE B 11 (15,213) (32,266)
Income tax FriS®i 13 - =
Loss for the year TEEER (15,213) (32,266)
Loss for the year attributable to: ITATEERFEEE
Owners of the Company RABFBA (30,397) (39,007)
Non-controlling interests IEIZE AR M 15,184 6,741
(15,213) (32,266)
Loss per share gREE 15
- Basic - N (2.07 cents {lli)  (2.83 cents 1)
- Diluted — N/A FiEH N/A 713 A
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 B EZE—FT——F+-_A=+—HILFE

2012 2011
—E-_fF —F——%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T
Loss for the year AKEEZEE (15,213) (32,266)
Other comprehensive income Hih2E K
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale At HE SR EE R FEESH)
financial assets 2,124 (4,742)
Exchange difference arising on translation & 5EINEFEE A 2 FE X =5
of foreign operations 1,984 3,052
Other comprehensive income, Ht2mEUE FIBRFTEH)
net of income tax 4,108 (1,690)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A4 EZHEEEASE (11,105) (33,956)
Comprehensive income for the year ATATEEAREER
attributable to: 2K
Owners of the Company ViN/NETEEFEWN (26,289) (40,697)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 s e 15,184 6,741
(11,105) (33,956)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R

As at 31 December 2012 A= ZE——F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—— %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Goodwill Bk 16 68,055 =
Property, plant and equipment W - BENEE 18 1,630 3,769
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESHEE 19 249 3,800
69,934 7,569
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REMmMEWIRR 22 79,958 96,760
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEBEER 23 22,309 19,459
102,267 116,219
Total assets EERE 172,201 123,788
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 5 REMEMNERR 24 30,950 45,330
Financial derivatives-current ERMUTETAE-RH 30 1,476 250
Bank overdraft RITHEX 39 =
Other borrowing-current HMER—nE 56,737 =
Convertible notes G E S 30 37,814 66,817
127,016 112,397
Net current asset/(liabilities) RBEERE (BEFH (24,749) 3,822
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZAEBRADER 45,185 11,391
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Convertible notes G E S 30 68,024 26,105
68,024 26,105
Total liabilities BEHARE 195,040 138,502
Net liabilities EEFE (22,839) (14,714)
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2012 2011

—F-=F —F—— %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT T T

Capital and reserves BAR#FE
Share capital A& A 27 735,939 782,171
Reserves & (762,546) (750,653)
Non-controlling interests FE 12 s e 3,768 3,768
Total equity RS (22,839) (14,714)

The consolidated financial statement on pages 42 to 144 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
22 March 2012 and are signed on it behalf by:

Chen Hong
BR=
Director

EF

FAEEF14BRNGREVEREN _E——F=A
—toPESEoHERBETE  WHTIES
REZRE

Wei Jianya
BERE
Director

EF
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Statement of Financial Position

B ISR 2R

As at 31 December 2012 A= ZE——F+-_A=+—H

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—— %
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T

Assets and liabilities BEEREE

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEREE 18 39 53
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZKE 20 77,848 1
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESHEE 19 249 3,800
78,136 3,854

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5N H b E AR 22 16,533 27,036
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W B /B R RIFRIE 20 136,895 136,388
Cash and cash equivalents RehkBeEBEER 23 44 1,673
153,472 165,097
Total assets EEH#E 231,608 168,951
Current liabilities RBEE

Trade and other payables B REMENERR 24 9,052 11,166
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAST B B 2 R FRIE 20 70 70
Bank overdraft RITHEX 39 =
Financial derivative ERTETE 30 1,476 250
Other borrowing-current HMER— 56,737 =
Convertible notes G E S 30 37,814 66,817
105,188 78,303
Net current asset REEEFE 48,284 86,794
Total assets less current liabilites EEZAERABERS 126,420 90,648

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Convertible notes B &5 30 68,024 26,105
68,024 26,105
Total liabilities BEARE 173,212 104,408
Net assets EEFE 58,396 64,543
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2012 2011

—E-_fF —F——%F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET THIT
Capital and reserves BAR#FE
Share capital A& A 27 735,939 732,171
Reserves & 28 (677,543) (667,628)
Total equity R 58,396 64,543
Chen Hong Wei Jianya
BRZ& EfRm
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mEREBER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

Share

capital
i
HK$'000
TR

Share
premium
RtE
HK$ 000

Th
(Note 28)

Share-based
payment
reserve
WEXf B
HK$'000
Thn

(Note 35)

Exchange
fluctuation
reserve
EXRBRE
HK§000
Th

Available

for-sale

Convertible ~ financial
notes assets

Equity  valuation

reserve reserve

TRRZE THLESH
BERE BEMERR
HKS 1000 HKS 000
Tk

Accumulated
losses
ZifE8
HKS 000

i g
Bl

Total
A
=]

HK$000
T

Non-
controlling
interests
FEREE
HK$ 000
TR

Total
equity
L
HK$'000
T

At1 January 2011 656,385 130,354 43483 6,114 49,688 225 (942,899) (65,650) 3,768 (51,882)
(Loss) for the year - - - - - - (39,007) (39,007) 6,741 (32,266)
Other comprenensive income for the year - - (28,989) 3,062 - [4.742) 30,740 61 - b1
Total comprehensive income (loss)

for the year - - (28,989) 3,052 = [4742) 8,267 (38,946) 6,741 (32,209)
Non-controling interests contribution - - - - - - - - (6,741) (6,741)
Being the cancellation of ordinary shares

at par value $0.50 8472) 483 - - s s = (3,637) = (3,637
Issue of convertiole notes - - - - 17,623 - - 17,623 - 17623
Issue of shares by conversion !

of convertible notes 85,258 5873 - - (12,956) - - 18,175 - 18,175
Redemption of convertible notes ; - - - - (980) - - (980) - (950)
Reclassifcation of settled convertible notes  HECERZAA

equity component - 30,267 - - (30.267) - - - - -
Being settlement of convertible notes ; ; - - - - 64,915 - - 64,915 - 64915
Reclassffication of convertible notes - - - - (80,012) = = 80,012) = (80,012)
At 31 December 2011 3,11 171,829 14,494 9,166 8,041 (2517) (951,166) (18,482) 3,768 (14.714)
(Loss) for the year - - - - - - (30,397) (30,397) 15,184 (15,213)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 1,084 - 2,124 - 4,108 - 4,108
Total comprehensive income (loss)

for the year - - - 1,984 - 214 (30,397) (26,269) 16,184 (11,105)
Non-controling interests contribution : - - - - - - - - (15,184) (15,184)
[ssug of convertible notes - - - - 10,909 - - 10,909 - 10,909
Issue of shares by conversion

of convertible notes 3,768 5,321 - - (486) - - 8,603 - 8,603
Redemption of convertible notes - - - - (132) - - (732) - (732)
Being settlement of convertile notes - - - - (616) - - (616) - (616)
At 31 December 2012 735,039 176,650 14,494 11,150 17,116 (393 (981,563) 26,607) 3,768 (22,839)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —ZT——F+ - A=+—HItFEE

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—— %

HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERx T

Cash flow from operating activities JEEEXKELZHERE

Loss before tax BT AT BT 18 (15,213) (32,266)
Adjustments for: AT&IE 2R
Finance cost, net & AN FRE 7,510 6,970
Depreciation e 2,239 1,741
Interest income FEWA (62) (102)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales  HERHEE SR EE

financial assets ZEE 2,532 106
Impairment losses on inventories GFEREEE - 121
Impairment losses on trade and B 5 & H b fE AR 5K

other receivables ZOREEE 4,902 6,971
Impairment gain recognized in BLIE N SRIBFE R A Rk (B W 2

respect of payables (137) -
Gain on redemption of convertible notes & Bl A] # i Z 15 I 25 - (1,950)
Operating cash flows before EEESEHALEEL

movements in working capital ZEERE 1,771 (18,409)
Decrease in inventories FERD - (16)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 & E b W AR 7K

other receivables A (E ) 3,269 (40,341)
(Increase)/decrease in amount due from & Y FE 422 I% ke 25 K38

non-controlling interests (&) = (6,741)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 & H A B AR

other payables CRu )/ # n (3,328) 14,986
Increase in loan and borrowing B3 K fg 58 0 5,155 =
Cash (used in) operations rEXK (TR RS 6,867 (50,521)
Overseas taxes paid EAEINEIE (126) (62)
Net cash (used in) operating activities K& %% (FrA) RE&FH 6,741 (50,583)

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012 49



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow
n‘l_\éiﬁvﬁ\;ﬁii

For the year ended 31 December 2012 #Z — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILtFE

2012 2011
—F-=F —F—— %

HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TAETT

Cash flow from investing activities BEFTHEEZRESRE

Purchase of property, BEVE B MR

plant and equipment (12) (534)
Proceed from sales of property, HEME - HEREE

plant and equipment Z TS FA - 8
Proceed from available-for-sale AR EeEE

financial assets ZFiS5RIE 3,331 602
Interest received 2 WFRLE 62 102
Payment for available-for-sale HAHLESREE

financial assets S 2 A (201) —

Net cash (used in) from investing BREEE (FTA)

activities 8BS RE 3,180 178
Financing activities A& EE
Cancellation of ordinary shares R EmR - (3,637)
Issue of convertible notes BT MR ERE - 118,201
Settlement of convertible notes (EANIGIEY 87 - (76,200)
Redemption of convertible notes EO A MR ER (2,537) (3,825)
Net cash from financing activities METBHEHESFE (2,537) 34,539

Net increase/(decrease) incashand RERBELZEEHIEHR

cash equivalents 2&Em,/ (Bad) B 7,384 (15,866)
Cash and cash equivalents FNzReREASEEEE

at the beginning of the year 19,459 33,717
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [E R &) v 22 (4,534) 1,608
Cash and cash equivalents FRZASRBASEHEER

at the end of the year 23 22,309 19,459
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HEZ=—ZT——F+_A=+—HIEFE

(Expressed in HK$) (LA T3 7R)

" 8

GENERAL

China E-Learning Group Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Revised) of the Cayman Islands on 10 July 2001. The
shares of the Company are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the section
of “Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

ADOPTION OF GOING
CONCERN BASIS

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis notwithstanding the
Group had net liabilities of approximately HK$22,839,000
as at 31 December 2012 and incurred a net loss of
HK$15,213,000 for the year then ended. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group is able to
maintain itself as a going concern in the coming year by
taking into consideration the arrangements which include,
but are not limited to, the following:

1. The directors of the Company will continue to reduce
overheads and costs, and are exploring
opportunities for existing business with an aim to
attain profitable operations with positive cash flows;

2. The proposal of capital reorganization was
approved in an extraordinary general meeting on
18 February 2013 and subject to further legal
proceedings in Cayman Islands. This capital
reorganization will provide the Company flexibility
to the market situations in pricing future capital
raising exercises and to issue shares to the
prevailing market price timely without going
through various statutory requirements. Hence,
the directors of the Company can sooner consider
various alternatives to enlarge the capital base of
the Company in order to provide additional funding
to the Group and to extend the maturity dates of
convertible notes payables;

1.

—REH

@B HE REERAR (ARF)) A
—ETStA+AENSHBRENSH
B AFE (@B MR T2 FREERA
A - AAARPETEHARBHERAT
(T 52 ) BIAR (T8I 4R ) Lo -

ARREMPERE R EREEME 2 U &
RERIARER] —8 -

RAEMBERRAETIE KREBEHRE
Sh - REBEHNEAAERERL 2 T
2 e

ARBZEBRBR/REEZR - HXZWE
REZ EBXFHNRA M HERKRMEE20

RAGECEREE

BENEBN-_ZE——F+_-_A=+—802
BEF R F22,839,0008 LA KRB EZE
I FEEAEREFEE15,213,0008 7T ' 424
PEREREBEFELCLEEEMFE - XA F
EERE ZEISE(ETERR) U TEE
TEARAZLH  NEBERERRFHEIZTRNHE

REEREER

1. RABESBEERERECEERST R
A - WAEIR RIR A B E RS
DERGBEFNBEEAERERECE
7

2. BABEHEZBEN _T—=F_A+N
HETZBRFRAS LEALE - 1
AXHERENHEMEERFMR
R o LA BAK RANR BN ARKAE
TERARELRDREEEREHEK
BEA - MR RRRNETRASE
BEPREHMRIELERERER L
RFE - WS ARRBABBRIBEE
REMERRERORITHERITR
e Bt - ARFEFEURFEEEIE
AARABAERNZRITER - A
RARERBEINE A REREN
AHMERRENRIEAH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 E#Z= =%

——F+ZA=t+—RHILtFE

(Expressed in HK$) (JA#E TTHIR)

2.

52

ADOPTION OF GOING 2.
CONCERN BASIS (Continued)

3. The directors of the Company will continue to
scale down the non-profitable operations;

4. As the Bank of Shanghai has provided the Group
a line of credit of RMB100,000,000 in August
2012, the directors of the Company will consider
utilizing this credit facility when necessary.

Based on the aforesaid measures, the directors of the
Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
these consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The consolidated financial statements do
not include any adjustments relating to the carrying
amount and reclassification of assets and liabilities that
might be necessary should the Group be unable to
continue as a going concern.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The following amendments and interpretations to existing
standards are mandatory for financial periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012:
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying asset;
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures - Transfers of

financial assets;
The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had

no significant financial effect on these consolidated
financial statements.
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4.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

The following published standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards are mandatory for
the Group’s financial periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012 or later periods and have not been early adopted

by the Group:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 Cycle,
except for the amendments
HKAS 1

Disclosures - Offsetting
financial assets and financial
liabilities'

Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures®

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements and disclosure
of interests in other entities:
Transition guidance’

Investment entities?

Financial instruments®

Consolidated financial
statements'

Joint arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in other
entities’

Fair value measurement!

Employee benefits’

EEMIE R RER2E B
5 3R 5 22 Al
THEHEMZ AR - HRAERZ ETRR
BRAEEN -2 —FA— AR ERN
2 BRI S R R A - AR
A IR

o
&=

i

B B 7S s 22 A HEBMBRE
CCHEN) #812009-2011
B2 FEBE
BB GRTAERIE 1%
ZABETRR AN
7578 B 7 o A B BRE-SRHEER
ENEACCHV:Y) ERBBIEE
778 B 7 e A B BRH B RS EE
FORRBEBIE %% 2 8 il 1
WEAER T A
(B3I A) N 38 1 4% BE S
B B 7 s A A AP ®RE
F105: - BAME HRZHRER
WMEERE11R RE M E RS
REAMBRE R BE
B 125% (BRI A) &3l
778 B 7 e 2 B HEER?
F105: - BAME
AR 125
REBGER
F275 (BFT )
BAMBREERNFESRE SMIAS
5 B s s A B RABRE
1058
BAM RS ER HRZH
115
BN EREEA N
125 2w
BB S AR DNFEHE
ZE135%
BEREHERE19% EERA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B EZ - T ——F +-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (LA 771 7R)

4.

54

ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HKFRSs (continueq)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)  Separate financial statements'

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)  Investments in associates and
joint ventures'
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income*
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities?
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the
Production Phase of a

Surface Mine'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
2015

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012

The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above
new standards, amendments and interpretations to
existing standards will not result in a significant impact
on the results and financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
certain financial assets which have been measured at
fair value, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

Losses within a subsidiary are attributed to the non-
controlling interest even if that results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interest and (i) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (ii) the fair value of
any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

5.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B EZ - T ——F +-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (LA 771 7R)

5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combination and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
If the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it
shall not be remeasured until it is finally settled within
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwill
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquire over the net identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value
may be impaired. The Group performs its annual
impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying
amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the gain or
loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of
in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Platform of network

Purchased platform of network is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods and services, or for
administrative purpose are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:
Building The shorter of the lease
terms or 5%
Leasehold improvements  The shorter of the lease
terms or 20%
Plant and equipment 20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%
office equipment
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
trade and other receivables, inventories and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of HKAS
39 are classified as loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or not,
directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, amounts due
from related companies and associates, client trust bank
balances and cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in interest income in the income
statement. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in the income statement.

5.

FESFTHEEX »®

THMEE
VEZ L

BEEFERESRAAEZAEECHE
EDBERERREBRFERAHHESRE
EWER) - AEEeRSRARET S
MEEZDE - ITHRSBEER © JIA
RN EN (HELIEE BB EIE A FEERN
TREE) BEREBIERXIHATE -

FIBERBERATEARKEZEREERR
5H AAREEAGEASLEEEZA) i
R ERBRTEARBEREZRNEHK
MZEMN—RREZHRAARNEEZ SR

AEBzREERTEFRIRR - AM
PR B REMEYFIR - BBBRERA
FEAEZESREE  RUBEATREE
REMKIE - BEPERRTEHBUALRE R
ReEEYD -

HEZE

ERMEEERRUTOBEFE -

EAREM R

B 5K e MR IR 46 B TE 3k P BB TE 1+ SR BR
EBRTMET L EREZIIFTESHEE - R
EEEIE - ZFEEBRERERNEE
FEREE R ERERIZEHKATE - #
RN R R AW BT R SOR B R E -
Y EFEBRERN KA D 2 &AM
Ko BEMEZEHET ARSRZHENK
A o BEERE R R ER o

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012 61



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B EZ - T ——F +-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in HK$) (JA#E TTHIR)

5.

62

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity and debt
securities. Equity investments classified as available for
sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss.
Debt securities in this category are those which are
intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and
which may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or in
response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale assets valuation reserve
until the assets is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the income
statement in other income, or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the income statement in
other operating expenses and removed from the
available-for-sale investment valuation reserve. Interest
and dividends earned are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability in the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial asset (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The Group evaluates its available-for-sale financial assets
whether the ability and intention to sell them in the near
term are still appropriate. When the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets and
management’s intent to do so significantly changes in
the foreseeable future, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets in rare circumstances.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans and
receivables and the Group has the intent and ability to
hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to maturity.
Reclassification to the held-to-maturity category is
permitted only when the entity has the ability and intent
to hold until the maturity date of the financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-for-
sale category, any previous gain or loss on that asset
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the
effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when (i) the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset have expired; or (ii) the Group has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets
(Continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial
asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that has
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions
that correlate with defaults.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an
amount comprising the difference between its cost (net
of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is
not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot be
reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such an unquoted
equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are
not reversed.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis and comprises, comprises costs of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of HKAS
39 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised costs,
as appropriate. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and accruals, amounts due to directors and
derivative financial instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term.
This category includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by HKAS 39. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
liabilities held for trading are recognised in the income
statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in
the income statement does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial assets at amotised cost

After initial recognition, financial assets at amotised cost
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain
the liability, conversion option and early redemption option
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, both the liability and early redemption
option components are measured at fair value. The
difference between the gross proceeds of the issue of
the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the
liability and early redemption option components
respectively, representing the conversion option for the
holder to convert the loan notes into equity, is included
in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The early redemption option is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

The equity component, representing the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes equity reserve
until the embedded conversion option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve
will be released to retained profits. No gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated income statement upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and amortised over
the period of the convertible notes using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in
active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without
any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligations, its carrying amount is
the present value of those cash flow (where the effect is
material).

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(i) Tuition revenue from educational programs is
recognised on a time-proportion basis, using the
straight-line method, over the duration of the
relevant educational programs.

(if) Revenue from sales of educational materials and
products is recognised when the products are
delivered and title has passed to customers.

(iif) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

The obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement scheme are recognised as
an expense in the consolidated income statement
as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an
independent administered fund.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service payments are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision will be made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service payments as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
or paternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation scheme (“Scheme”) to remunerate
its employees.

For share options granted under the Scheme, the
fair value of the employees’ services rendered in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense immediately and credited to the
share-based payment reserve under equity. Where
the employees are required to meet vesting
conditions before they become entitled to the
options, the Group recognises the fair value of
the options granted over the vesting periods. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. It recognises
the impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated income statement, and
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payment reserve.
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5.

(2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(ii)  Share-based payments (Continued)

Upon exercise of the share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as
additional share capital at the nominal value of
the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
by the Company in the share premium account.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-
based payment reserve until the option is
exercised when it is transferred to the share
premium account if the options lapse unexercised,
the related share-based payment reserve is
transferred directly to retained profits.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal
title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception
of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is
capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. All
differences are taken to the income statement.
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5.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flow, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for
which significant voting power in such entity
resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group, or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.
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6.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATIONS

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgments,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after
taking into account their estimated residual value. The
Company assesses annually the residual value and the
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and if
the expectation differs from the original estimates, such
differences from the original estimates will affect the
depreciation charges in the year in which the estimates
change.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND
EST'MAT'ONS (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and age
of the trade and other receivables. Appropriate
impairment for estimated irrecoverable amounts is
recognised in the consolidated income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether impairment on trade and other
receivables is required, the Company takes into
consideration the current creditworthiness, the past
collection history, age status and likelihood of collection.
Specific allowance is only made for receivables that are
unlikely to be collected and is recognised on the
difference between the estimated future cash flow
expected to receive of which discounted by using the
original effective interest rate and its carrying value. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Company
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional impairment may be
required.

Valuation of share options granted

The fair value of share options granted was calculated
using the Black-Scholes valuation model which requires
the management’s estimates and assumptions on
significant calculation inputs, including the estimated life
of share options granted, the volatility of share price and
expected dividend yield. Change in the subjective input
assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

6.

ARSI HE R e

HETHBREZE ®
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6.

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND
EST'MAT'ONS (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment loss of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill needs impairment requires
an estimation of the value is use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flow is less
than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$68,055 (2011: nil).

OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

Business segments

Over 99% of the Group’s revenue, results, assets and
liabilities are derived from the provision of occupational
education, industry certification course, skills training and
education consultation, no detailed analysis of the
Group’s operating segments is disclosed.

Geographical segments

The Group’s operations are situated in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) in which its revenue was
derived principally therefrom. Accordingly, no
geographical segments are presented.

Information about a major customer
No transactions with a single external customer amount

to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue during the year
2012 and 2011.
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10.

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the years is as AEBRFEAZEEBOWEAT ¢
follows:

2012 2011

—2—=% —F——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FE T

Tuition fee revenue HEREZIA 41,685 39,968
Sales of educational products HEEREE 98 172
41,783 40,140

OTHER INCOME

9. HWA

2012

—_E—_F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FT#Ex FHIT
Exchange gains, net b 5, W 2 5B - 1
Interest income AMEWA 62 102
Sundry income MM A 51 1,089
Gain on redemption of convertible notes FERE T iR 21 2 s - 1,950
Rental income HEWA 109 46
222 3,188

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expenses on financial liabilities

10. A& R A

2012
—_E—_F

HK$’000
TR

RBERAGEZERARE

2011
—F——%F
HK$°000
T T

measured at amortised cost ZHERX 7,667 6,815
Fair value changes on financial derivative CTRITET A AT EE (157) 155
7,510 6,970
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11. LOSS BEFORE TAX 11. BRELAIEE

2012 2011
—E--F —F——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss before tax has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’” emoluments

BB ATEE S ks GEA)
THEIE

BEAN (BHREZM)

TER

TET

- basic salaries and allowances —E A e NKER 11,972 15,772

— contributions to defined contribution plans ~ — & 84t T2 2 5k 918 300

- Other —Efb 865 -
Total staff costs BEEKAK 13,755 16,072
Auditors’ remuneration: ZERTEN & -
- Audit service — ZERT 260 185
- Non-audit service — BRI 3 18
Professional fee BEEH 6,532 7,497
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ % - HE MR E 2T E
—included in cost of sales —BEREERANRN 802 227
— included in selling expenses —BEREERZN 7 7
- included in administrative expenses —BERTEASZA 1,430 1,507

2,239 1,741

Impairment losses on inventories GFEREEE - 121
Impairment losses on trade receivables g RrRWERFRESRE - 407
Impairment losses on other receivables Hib i sImmEEE 4,902 6,564
Loss on disposal of available-for-sales HEMHEESCHMEE

financial asset ZE1E 2,532 106
Compensation of convertible notes AR ER 2 FHE - 10,860
Payments under operating lease for TH REFLERLY

land and buildings H TR 2,838 3,108

Exchange (gains) losses, net

PE Y (Wam) B8 - B
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a.

12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEMNE
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ emoluments a. EEMe
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Retirement Performance
in kind scheme  Share-based related
Fees  H& 2% contributions payment bonuses Total
e REMAE BAGEMR  URXAFE  RARBEA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THER THER Tin Tin Tin
For the year ended BE-E--f
31 December 2012 TZA=t-ALEE
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Chen Hong REkE - 1,000 - - - 1,000
Ms. Wei Jianya EROAL - 600 - - - 600
Independent Non-Executive B FEHTES
Directors
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing BRET 60 - - - - 60
Mr. Cheung Wai Tak David REELE ()
(note i) 100 - - - - 100
M. Wu Tao (note i) BB A (W) 80 - - - - 80
240 1,600 - - - 1,840
Salaries,
allowances
and bengfits Retirement Performance
in kind scheme  Share-based related
contributions payment bonuses
aralt WRZAFE  RARERA
HK$'000
AL
For the year ended BE-Z--F
31 December 2011 TZA=T-HLEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Chen Hong RExE = 2,000 = = = 2,000
Ms. Wei Jianya EROAT - 1,150 - - - 1,150
Independent Non-Executive BUEHTES
Directors
Dr. Huang Chung Hsing FZEML 60 - - - - 60
M. Cheung Wi Tak David REELE ()
(note ) 100 - - - = 100
Mr. W Teo (note i) REEE (i 100 - - - - 100
260 3,150 - - - 3,410
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 12. EEREEME w0

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

a.

34

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Cheung Wai Tak was appointed on 11 June
2010.
(ii) Mr. Wu Tao was resigned on 19 October 2012.

In 2012, the amounts of share-based payments
were measured according to the Group’s
accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

None of the directors of the Company waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the
Company and no incentive payment for joining the
Company or compensation for loss of office was
paid or payable to any director of the Company
during the two years ended 31 December 2012
and 2011.
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

b. Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2011: two) were directors of
the Company, whose remunerations are included
in the disclosures above. The remunerations of
the remaining three (2011: three) individuals were
as follows:

Salaries allowances and benefits

12. EEREEME @

b. HEURSHAL

AEEAUHFRFALEBREARFM
H(CE——F MRBEF ®EZ
FEN LR - SN THESB=R (=
T——%F: ZR) AT ZHFMOT :

2012 2011
—2—=F —F——F
HK$’000

THET

HK$’000
FER

e RMRED G

in kind 1,906 1,043
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGT IR 14 55
Share-based payment VA RS S2 A< 3B - =

1,920 1,098

Their remunerations were within the following
pand:

BEZHMEN NIIBENA

Number of individuals

A
2012 2011
—E——F —T——fF
HK$ Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,0007 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7T

%1,500,0007% 7T = =
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13. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) 13. FifEH (%) XX
EXPENSE
During the year ended 31 December 2012, no Hong Kong HE_ZT——F+-HA=1+—HLEFE ' H
profits tax has been provided for as the Group did not RAEETEREBEETMERTEF -
generate any taxable profits in Hong Kong (2011: nil). W EEHBENEBEE (T ——F ¢

®) o

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%EFiZﬁﬁﬁzxﬂﬂ?ﬁ%EZ
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. Under the WMITMETE - REBE(PRADEMET X
Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) ([TEMERE]D) REEMBHIEZ BHEHK
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax Bl - BB AR ZHER25% (ZF——
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2011: 25%). F 1 25%) o
The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss RERRFAEHEGS WE R BRI AEE
before tax per the consolidated income statement as HERR ¢
follows:

2012 2011
—B-=F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Loss before tax B B A S 18 (15,213) (32,266)
Tax at respective applicable tax rates LRBERAMESE 2R (8,825) (5,324)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HAE 2 s &
for tax purposes 1,595 1,152
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERBMAZ BB E
tax purposes 6,933 (5,900)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERMBEBEZBBEE 297 10,072
Income tax for the year REFEWFEH - =
14. DIVIDEND 14. R E
No dividend was paid or proposed for the year ended 31 BE_ET——F+-_B=+—HItFEETE
December 2012, nor has any dividend been proposed RS ERMNERIRE » RBEHRE I E
since the end of the reporting period (2011: Nil). BERENTAKRE(ZZ——F &) o
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15.

16.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on
the loss for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$30,397,000 (2011:
HK$39,007,000), and based on the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of
approximately 1,469,511,314 ordinary shares (2011:
1,377,821,471), as adjusted to reflect the issue of new
shares, bonus shares and shares by conversion of
convertible notes during the year.

No diluted loss per share has been presented for 2012
and 2011 as the share options and convertible notes

outstanding have anti-dilutive effects on the basic loss

15. BREE

BRERNEBDNRBAEERNDGIEE AR
1HE548 4930,397,0008 L (T —— & :
39,007,000/7T) + MA KA A EE DA R Bk F A9 3%
TR ~ ALR% I A AT R IR IR A S A Ty 3%
TR 2 FARNEETRMOMETHEE L
1,469,511,314F% (=& — —F :
1,377,821,4710%) L@ARATE -

R AR AT 8 2 RS RO e P R R SRR ET P 2 51
ZEREABERSEAARBENRR - R
B2 _F——_FR-T—FESRES

per share amounts presented. 18 °
GOODWILL 16. &
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
T T
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2011, n—_ZE——&F—H—H8 -

31 December 2011 —T——F+=ZA=+—H 679,104
Acquisition of a subsidiary — Everjoy International 488 — I B A B — KL 51,409
Acquisition of a subsidiary — Everjoy Technology — Y& —FEIM B A 7 — KERK 16,646
At 31 December 2012 RZTE——F+-_HA=+—H 747,159
Accumulated Impairment R2FRE
As at 1 January 2011 and RZE—F—H—B8X

31 December 2011 —E——f+-A=+—H 679,104
Impairment losses recognised during the year FARRREEE -
At 31 December 2012 —E——F+=-A=+—H 679,104
Carrying amounts SREE
At 31 December 2012 R_TE——F+-_HA=+—H 68,055

At 31 December 2011

R=E——F+=A=+—A -

37
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16. GOODWILL (continueq)

383

Note:

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries New Beida
Business Study Net Group Limited is HK$647,598,000
on 27 February 2008.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, [IN Medical
(BVI) Group Limited (“lIN Medical (BVI)") and its
subsidiaries on 23 April 2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of non-controlling interests
of Hunan IIN Medical Network Technology Development
Company Limited, a subsidiary of IIN Medical (BVI), in
May 2009.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of ii and iii is
HK$31,506,000.

Goodwill arose on acquisition of subsidiaries, Everjoy
International Media Corporation and Everjoy Technology
Development Corporation is HK$68,055,000 on 20
December 2012.

Impairment testing of goodwill

i.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A

Acaquisition of New Beida Business Study
Net Group Limited (“New Beida”)

As at the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group had performed an impairment testing of
goodwill arose on acquisition of New Beida with
reference to a valuation carried out by LCH (Asia-
Pacific) Surveyors Limited (“LCH”), an
independent qualified valuer. As New Beida
sustained a negative cash flow for the year ended
31 December 2009 and such position was
expected to continue in the foreseeable future,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that the income approach was inappropriate to
reflect the value of New Beida as at 31 December
2009. The asset-based approach had been
adopted for the valuation for the year ended 31
December 2009, as opposed to the valuation
carried out by LCH for the year ended 31
December 2008 where the income approach was
adopted. Based on the business valuation, the
Group had recognised an impairment loss of
HK$326,115,000 in relation to goodwill arose on
acquisition of New Beida for the year ended 31
December 2009 (2008: HK$321,483,000). As a
result, the goodwill arose on acquisition of New
Beida was identified to be fully impaired.

16. & »)

S

BEDN_EENF_A-+tRKEN
BRAMILARBEEEERA A KE
4+ /3647,598,000/ 7T ©
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BHBV))) REMBARBEL -
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(BVI)Z /8 7] — 4 R0 B R B8 LA AR o e
RBEERARZIFEBRERFESE °

T AU K iifSEE A - 531,506,000
BT e

EMEDR-_E——F+ A=+ HKEK
BRE - KEBEBRERAR AR RoKER
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7T|:o
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16 GOODW".L (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

ii.

Acquisition of IIN Medical (BVI)

As at the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group has performed an impairment testing of
goodwill arose on acquisition of [IN Medical (BVI)
with reference to a valuation carried out by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, based on cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets for the next five years with a discount
rate of 17.83%. The directors of the Company
were of the opinion, based on the business
valuation, that there the Group had recognised
an impairment loss of HK$31,506,000 in relation
to goodwill arose from the acquisition of IIN
Medical (BVI) as at 31 December 2010. As a result,
the goodwill of HK$31,506,000 on acquisition of
IIN Medical (BVI) was identified to be fully impaired.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill has been
determined on the basis of value-in-use
calculation. The key factors for the value-in-use
calculation are discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes in revenue and direct costs.
Capital Asset Pricing Model has been adopted to
estimate the discount rate by using market data
of other companies with business similar to 1IN
Medical (BVI). The growth rate is based on the
historical Consumer Price Index of the PRC.
Changes in revenue and direct costs are based
on past performance of [IN Medical (BVI) and
management’s expectation of the market
development.

16. & »

R R E R )

ii.

W fi% 7 71l B8 5 (BVI)

HE_T—TF+_A=+—HIF
B AEBZ2RPIATEBERATIE
2 B+ BB Uk B 5T B8 22 (BVI) M
EEZEBETHENR - ARMKE
TBE ST AR AT RIBE (BHIR
HA17.83%) i HE1T 2 3 &7 2 78 A
17 ARRIZEERE  RBEZEBHG
B AEBERR-_ZT—ZTF+=A
=+— B A UKIE R E EE(BVI) M ELE
2 BRI EEE31,506,0007%
g ° AL - UL RS B AL EE ZE(BVI) i 2=
A 7 HE#31,508,000/8 T E R AESR
HURE ©

BEZAKCeECREAEEFE
HEETF - FREEFECEIEZRAR
RSB RERRAZBHRE - BRE
REHIES -  EABETERACE
Ry ARAEBABEBVIRER
U 2 Eth AR 2 MR AT RE
BE - BREDERTEZBERE
MEREFE - W REEKRAZE
I RIRBIA B BBV 2 BERR K
EEEHMSERZREMEDL

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2012 B EZ - T ——F +-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (LA 771 7R)

16. GOODWILL (continueq)

90

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continueq)

ii.

Acquisition of Everjoy International and
Everjoy Technology

The directors have performed an impairment
review of the carrying amount of goodwill as at
31 December 2012 and have concluded that no
provision for impairment is required. For the
purposes of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
has been allocated to the smallest individual of
cash generating units identified as at 31 December
2012. The recoverable amount of each of the cash
generating units is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial estimates made by
the directors, with reference to the prevailing
market conditions, assuming gross profit margins
of 10%. The management assumes that the sales
in the following periods will increase significantly
and the cash flows are extrapolated with reference
to the sales volume of the cash generating units
acquired.
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17. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. HtEFEEE

The Group
rEE
HK$’000
T T

Cost 2%
At 1 January 2011 RZZE——F—H—H 48,194
Exchange realignment ME W S 2,401
At 31 December 2011 ot o el I 50,595
Exchange realignment PE 3 A& 1,737
As 31 December 2012 RZT——-F+=-A=+—H 52,332

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment R @R B E

At 1 January 2011 n=—E—%—H—H

Charge for the year FRNETR 48,194
Exchange realignment M H S 2,401
As 31 December 2011 R-ZZE—F+-_A=+—H 50,595
Exchange realignment ME W S 1,737
At 31 December 2012 RZZE—=—F+=-_A=+—H 52,332
Carrying amounts REE

At 31 December 2012 RZZE——F+_-_A=+—H =
At 31 December 2011 R—E—F+-_A=+—H =
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. Y% - MERRE
EQUIPMENT
a. The Group a. A&
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
Plantand  equipment
Leasehold machinery B Motor
improvements Building HE RER vehicles Total
HENELL BT k#E BAERHE "E H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL FET FEL TEL FEL
Cost KA
At 1 January 2011 R-E-—F—H—-H 1,295 - - 14,119 378 15,792
Additions NE 137 - - 397 - 534
Disposal HE - - - (677) - (677)
Reclassification ENAE (416) - - 416 - -
Exchange realignment 5 AR 24 - - 696 19 739
At 31 December 2011 N_E——F
TZA=1-H 1,040 - - 14,951 397 16,388
Additions NE - - - 12 - 12
Disposal HE - - - - - -
Reclassification ENNE - - - - - -
Exchange realignment B 5 % 17 - - 500 14 531
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——F
+-AZ1+-H 1,057 - - 15,463 411 16,931

Accumulated depreciation ZitHERHE
and impairment

At 1 January 2011 W=E--%-F-AH 945 - = 9,939 125 11,009
Charge for the year FEREE 223 - = 1,305 213 1,741
Disposal HE - - - (669) - (669)
Reclassification ENE (187) - - 187 = o
Exchange realignment 5 10 - - 517 11 538
At 31 December 2011 N_E——4&

+-A=+-H 991 - = 11,279 349 12,619
Charge for the year FREE 58 - - 2,164 17 2,239
Disposal HE - - - - - -
Reclassification ENNE - - - - - -
Exchange realignment 5 AR 8 - - 423 12 443
At 31 December 2012 RZE-Z§

+=A=1-H 1,057 - = 13,866 378 15,301
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2012 R-B-ZF

+=A=+-H 3 - = 1,597 33 1,630
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F

+-A=1+-H 49 - = 3,672 48 3,769

92 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A



18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 18. Y% - BMEKRRZE @

EQU'PMENT (Continued)
b. The Company b. ZA2QFH
Furniture,
fixtures
and office
equipment
Bl £8
ERAERE
HK$’000
T T
Cost PN
At 1 January 2011 and 31 December 2011 Rn—ZF——%—H—H
R—E——F+-A=+—H 68
Additions NE -
At 31 December 2012 R=ZF—=—%+=-A=+—H 68

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2t MERREE

At 1 January 2011 R-_E——F—H—H 5
Charge for the year FAFHE 10
At 31 December 2011 RZF——%+=-A=+—H 15
Charge for the year FNFHE 14
At 31 December 2012 R-—F——F+-_HA=+—H 29
Carrying amounts BREE

At 31 December 2012 R-F——F+-_A=+—H 39
At 31 December 2011 R-F——F+=-A=+—8H 53
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e P HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (A TTHIR)

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 19. AIftHESHMEE
FINANCIAL ASSETS
The Group and the Company
AEBERAEATF
2012 2011
—E—=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Listed equity securities at fair value ERERES AT E
- In Hong Kong —&BB 249 3,800
20. INVESTMENTS IN 20. "B AR ZKRE
SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
b NN
2012 2011
—E——F —ET—%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T T
Unlisted shares, at cost FEETARAD - AR 77,848 800,012
Less: impairment losses
on investment costs B RERA Z REEE - (800,011)
77,848 1
The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- BB AR ARV EER 2B REEE
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying ERH c mERERABEEA R TEME

amounts of these amounts approximate to their fair value.
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20. INVESTMENTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES (continueq)

20. RMIBE AT 2BE »

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2012 are as follows:

Name of company

NEER

China E-Learning
(Hong Kong) Limited
mERRAE (B8) BRAA

New Beida Business
StudyNet Group Limited
HAAHEREEAERAR

Best Boom Enterprises
Limited
Best Boom Enterprises Limited

Beijing Hua Tuo Education
Technology Company
Limited (note a)

IRERAEHBERAR
(Fitzka)

Beijing Ke Xiong Education
Company Limited (note a)

ERMELEER AR
(Fitsa)

IN Medical (BVI) Group
Limited
BAREEBVIEERRAA

IN Medical Group Limited
EABEEZERAA

Hunan IIN Medical Network
Technology Development
Company Limited (note a)

HREAEEEANEAE
ARAR (Hzka)

Place of incorporation/
registration/operations

EMRIL/ S

Hong Kong
&

BVI
REBRAHS

BV
RBRLES

PRC
HE

PRC
HE

BVI
RERRES

Hong Kong
A

PRC
E

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/
registered capital
BORBERE/
ZHER

Ordinary shares HK$1
BT ERR

Ordinary shares
US$10,000
10,000k T & @K

Ordinary shares US$10
10£ L% Bk

Registered capital
HK$40,000,000
40,000,000% L&A

Registered capital
RMB5,000,000
AR#5,000,0007 & A

Ordinary shares
HK$13,677,288
13,677,288 L E Rk

Ordinary shares
HK$3,000,000
3,000,000 T & # R

Registered capital
RMB14,530,808
ARH14,530,808 TR E AR

TEMBRARANR_-ZE

ZHBWT

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company
KRRARAEAERRL A

Directly Indirectly
B 5k
100% =
100% =
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
= 100%
- 100%
= 100%

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012
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Principal activities

IRER

Provision of management
services to group companies

ARERRREEERE

Investment holding
RARK

Investment holding

RAZR

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation

REBELE  TERERE
BESEI R AR =5

Provision of occupational
education, industry
certification course,
skills training and
education consultation

REBELE  TERERE
KA R A

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding
RERR

Investment holding

RERK
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20. INVESTMENTS IN

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of incorporation/
registration/operations

BV VE bk

Name of company

LEER

Distance Education College of PRC

Beiing University of i RMB900,000
Chinese Medicine AR 900,000 A A&
GRREERES
ERAEER
Everjoy International Media BVI Ordinary shares
Corporation RERIES HKS8
KEEREEERAT 8AETEER
Everjoy Technology BVI Ordinary shares
Development Corporation RERNES HK$387 575
KEMBERERAA 387 5758 T E AR
Notes:
a. These are wholly-foreign owned enterprises established

in the PRC.

Issue and fully paid
up share capital/
registered capital
BARBERE/
ERER

Registered capital

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during

the year.

21. INVENTORY

Cost
Less: impairment losses

DN
B REETR

—F+ZA=+—RIEFE

20. RMIBRABIZ2®RE »

Proportion ownership

interest held by
the Company Principal activities
KARRARAERAERELH TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# F:3
- 51% Provision of distance
learning program
in Chinese medicine
RETBERRYE AR
- 100% Distribution of event
tickets
PEEBMAR
= 100% Provision of design, development,
and improvement of software
system
RERMZENRE R RSE
B 3

a. RERBRZZINEBERE -

MF L FRNERRR - ZFH B AR ILE
EAEHES

21. 78

The Group
A EE

2012 2011
—E2-—=F —F——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
THET FHTT
172 166
172 166
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22. TRADE AND OTHER 22 BESRHEHMEWERR
RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company
r5E b N

2012 2012

—_E—_F = —E-—_F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTERT FHT TERT FHBT
Trade receivables Z 5 REMERR 1,439 1,391 = =
Less: impairment losses A OREEE (1,439) (1,391) - =

Deposits and other B RE MR

receivables PR 106,088 97,404 153,248 1,276
Prepayments BN FIE 7,320 26,969 - 25,760
Less: impairment losses o OREEE (33,450) (27,613) - =
79,958 96,760 153,248 27,036
An aging analysis of trade receivables as at the end of BIRUBEFNREPRRZERROTAT

the reporting period is as follows:

The Group The Company
rEH P NG|

2012 2011 2012 2011

—2--f ZF——F Z%B-=fFf —T—F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FTERT FHT TERT FHET

Within 30 days 30HA - = = =

31 to 60 days 31H£60H [ - = = -

61 to 90 days 61H£90H [ - = - =

Over 90 days HBiB90H 1,439 1,391 - —

1,439 1,391 - -
General credit term that the Group offers to customers AEBE—RATFPIEMHEARERRF30HK
is 30 days from billing. Trade receivables disclosed above FEH - EXRECESHEBERBENR
include amounts which are past due at the end of the SHAREDABMZFIE AR EEEERTESE
reporting period for which the Group has not recognised RENCRZEFBDERABAYE - HARE

an allowance for doubtful debts because there has not B EERARERE -

been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade
and other receivables were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables are
recognised based on the credit history of customers, such
as financial difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of

trade receivables is as follows:

22. ESREMEWERR @

RERERR - NEE 2 EH REAMERR
RIOEREERETHRREIE - BRIREZE
WHIRTIIRIER P 2 E B A28 (NI BN Bk
o R FIR) MIRITHONFER - NEEW TR %
FREATBEMERR -

AEEEREHERKRFRBERE ZZEIN
T -

98

The Group The Company
r5E VYN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—2--f ZF——F Z%B-=fFf —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT THET THERT THT
At 1 January n—H—8 1,391 916 - -
Impairment losses REEE - 407 - =
Exchange realignment b 5 R 48 68 - =
At 31 December wn+=-—A=+—H 1,439 1,391 - =

The Group’s movement for provision of impairment of
other receivables is as follows:

REBEGBEMEYIERER B ZBN
T -

The Group The Company
rEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—B-C=fF —T——fF —E-C-F —T——fF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET THET FHET
At 1 January R—A—H 27,613 19,818 - -
Impairment losses WEEE 4,902 6,564 - 80,207
Exchange realignment BEE 5, o B 935 1,231 - -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—AH 33,450 27,613 - 80,207
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23. e RkBATEHFEHEE

The Group The Company
r&EH PN

2012 2011 2012 2011

—8-=f —F——% Z=%B-=f%f —F——F%

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FHET TR FHBT

Bank balances IRITRE R 12,429 18,685 3 980

Cash balances R et 9,880 95 41 14

Cash in licensed corporation W # e %E 2 IR & - 679 - 679
Cash and cash equivalents RGAERERER

in the consolidated ZRekBES
statement of cash flow ZEEE 22,309 19,459 44 1,673

Cash and deposits with banks of HK$12,438,091
(2011:HK$17,786,000) for the Group are denominated
in Renminbi, which is not a freely convertible currency
and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to
the exchange control imposed by the PRC government.

Deposits with banks are interest bearing at the prevailing
market rates.

REE 2B RRITFR12,438,091%8 7T (=
T ——4F : 17,786,000/ 70) Ji A A REE T
B MARKIWIERLSLER - mFBE
SNEE R B HR B BT B9 SNE B Il AR IR o

RITERRBITH SRR -
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For the
(Expres

24.

100

year ended 31 December 2012 & EZ —T——F+ - A=+—HILEE
sed in HKS) (LA THI7R)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24, ES N EHMENRR

The Group The Company
rEE PN

2012 2011 2012 2011
—8-=f —F——% Z=%B-=f%f —F——F%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’°000 HK$’'000
TET FET TR FAIL
Trade payables E SRR 14 13 - -
Other payables H fth f& < 5118 3,843 25,422 2,382 10,960
Receipt in advance TR IE 20,057 19,689 - -
Accrued charges fEETEH 7,036 206 6,670 206
30,950 45,330 9,052 11,166
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of BIEMNEFRBEARIRRDNAOT ¢

reporting period is as follows:

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
—E--F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THET
Within 30 days 30HA = -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60HH - =
61 to 90 days 61HZ90H i - =
Over 90 days H#I0H 14 13

The Company
NN
2012 2011
—2--F —2——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FET

14 13
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25. DEFERRED TAXATION

(a)

(b)

The Group

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position and the movements during the
years are as follows:

At 1 January 2011, and R=—ZE——F— A —H

25, REFIE

(a)

A EH

WERA B SOR R MR 2 IR 1
(BE) BEERDS RAENT B8
m

Accelerated tax

Depreciation

MERBFTE

HK$'000
TR

Total
st
HK$’000
T

Tax losses
HIEEE
HK$’000

FHT

31 December 2010 NZF—FF

F=HE=ar=E 28 (28) -
Movement for the year R & 42 (42) =
At 31 December 2011 RZ-ZZT——4F

S e =l 70 (70) =
Movement for the year R & 12 (12) -
At 31 December 2012 R-ZT—_4F

+=—R=+—H 82 (82) -

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
estimated the unused tax losses of approximately
HK$182,750,669 (2011: HK$124,846,000)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

The Company

At the end of the reporting date, the Company
had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$138,766,172 (2011: HK$110,391,940)
available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of such losses due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The tax losses can be
carried forward indefinitely.

(b)

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012

RERE B BISE AR - AR E G A A
TEE SH R A m M) 2 R B B IB B 1R LY
#182,750,6698 L (ZF ——4F :
124,846,000/ 7T) ° A RBETEAIAR
HR AR - WA B ZEEIEER
BEFTBAE - 2SR IEBEAER

EANN

RERE BB - ARREASA
Z HIEE1849138,766,1728 T (=&
——4F : 110,391,940/ 7t) 7] A{EK
SR 5 o FRF R BE TERI R 2R i A
HOR - B L S BB RIEE R
HEE ZEPHEEBAERBRAL
ggf_i; o
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(Expressed in HK$) (A TTHIR)

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. Mg

The Group and the Company TEERAERQTF

Number of

shares Share capital
RH#E BR 2

HK$’'000
TAET

Authorised: EE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each RZE——FRZE—ZF
at 31 December 2011 and 2012 +=—A=+—H

HREMEC.SE T
Z &R 10,000,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHAR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each RZE—ZTF+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2010 E=ZF——F—H—H
and 1 January 2011 BREMECSB L EBR 1,310,770,439 655,385
Issue of shares by conversion AR R E R
of convertible notes a7 a 170,515,381 85,258
Being the cancellation FTIHEEO.508 T
of ordinary shares B AR
at par value HK$0.50 b (16,944,000) (8,472)
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each N-_TE——F+-_A=+—H
at 31 December 2011 SRR EEO.SB T LB 1,464,341,820 732,171
Issue of shares by conversion AR R EE R
of convertible notes 2 1TR% (7 c 7,537,082 3,768
Ordinary shares of HK$0.5 each R=-Z——-f+=-H=+—H
at 31 December 2012 EREEISBTZEER 1,471,878,902 735,939
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26.

27.

SHARE CAP'TAL (Continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2011, convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$91,130,547 were
converted by holders to subscribe for 170,515,381
shares. Details of the conversion during the year are
set out in note 29.

(b) On 18 October 2011, the Company repurchased
16,944,000 shares at par value of $0.50.

(¢) During the year ended 31 December 2012, convertible
notes in the principal amount of HK$7,612,454 were
converted by holders to subscribe for 7,537,082 shares.
Details of the conversion during the year are set out in
note 29.

RESERVES
(@) The Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 48 of the annual report.

26.

27.

IR )

REERKRDTE @)

MHaE -

(@) BE_Z——F+-_A=+—RHILFE "
AR RIER S ABRARE 91,180,647

BT Z AR  LARREE170,515,381 /%
B - FERZ AR F B AME29 o

(b) RZZE—F+A+/\B - XARIERE
16,944,0000% F A A {E0.5078 T 2 & 17 °

(©) BE-_ZT——E+-A=+—HIL&EE
Tﬁékﬂih*ﬁ/\mﬁﬁ/f%w 612,454
TTZ AR ERE - AFREET7,537,082% i%
% o iWZ}QH&%'\ﬁ%mWazzg o

(@ =KH

REERAGFFERNEBFEE 2S8R
NEBERFRFELISE 2R MR &
FRP 27 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (A TTHIR)

27. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

104

The Company

At 31 December 2010

27. #E =
(b) Z&AF

Convertible

Share-based
Share payment

note equity
reserve  Accumulated
reserve T8k losses
REBE URIfIRE FEERRRE E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T AL

premium

Total

A
A

HK$000

and 1 January 2011 - 130,354 43483 49,688 @097 (626,449)
Total comprehensive loss TEE2EEROE

for the year - (28,989 - (11,518 (40,507)
Reclassification of settled EEipxs]

convertile notes LAER 30 30,267 = (30,267) = -
Reclassffication of settled ENABRER

convertiole notes LIBRER 30 - - (80,012) - (80,012)
Setflement of Convertible notes £ AR ZlE 30 - - 64,915 - 64,915
Equity component of ThEEER RESD

convertible notes 30 - - 17,623 - 17,623
Issue of shares by conversion R R ZEEE#

of convertible notes ﬁmﬂ Kt 30 5873 = (12,956) = (7,083)
Redemption of convertible notes ~ EE FTARER 30 - - (950) = (950)
Being cancellation of ordinary ~ FESE{E050% T

shares at par value $0.50 Lak 27 4,835 - - = 4,83
At 31 December 2011 RZE—EtZA=1-H 171,329 14,494 8,041 (861,492) (667,628)
Total comprehensive loss rEE2EEREE

for the year - = = (24,311) (24,311)
Settlement of Convertible notes ~ ERf ATRHZ 1 - - (616) - (616)
Issue of convertible notes ETTRRRE - - 0,909 - 10,909
Issue of shares by conversion R REBEER

of convertible notes ki 5,321 - (486) - 4,835
Redemption of convertible notes ~ EE FTARER - - (732) = (732)
At 31 December 2012 R-E-ZE+2f=1-8 176,650 14,494 17116 085809 (677,549
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27. RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

The Company (Continued)

The capital reserve of the Group represents the
excess of the nominal value of the share capital
and the share premium account of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation
over the nominal value of the share capital of the
Company issued in exchange therefore.

Pursuant to the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association,
the share premium of the Company is distributable
to the shareholders provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. At 31 December
2012, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Company did not have any reserve
available for distribution to shareholders (2011:
Nil).

The share-based payment reserve comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet
to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 34 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to accumulate losses
should the related options expire or be forfeited.

27. #E»®

(b)
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AEBEEAFHBEREEESHEMK
B2 MY B A R 2 IR AR E B M E (E
REBAARRBREETZRARELZ
EH e

REMSHSDAERAREHE

RARR MR ERERRAREE AR -
RATBENEERBEEHH 2

Z &I ¢ BIZRA R AT A AR R 5 IR AR (D
wE MRZEBE——F+=ZA=+—
B RNAREERABAR QB EEM
ARARED R EE(ZE——F -
=) o

ARSI R B R E X B R 1T
2B NFHE - & RIS RRMT
HMABUARI N RS 2GR -
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=+
28. OTHER BORROWING - 28. HfERK —RE
CURRENT
The Group
rEE
2012 2011
—EF-=F —F——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Borrowing from shareholder-Yang Dong Jun AR ER — H5RE 51,070 =
Borrowing form other parties: M) E Ath 77 18 5K
Gong Di Qing Gong Di Qing 689 =
Zhiku Caipital Investment Limited Zhiku Caipital Investment
Limited 3,955 -
Superb Summit International Group Limited & I& BB & B AR A A 1,023 =
56,737 -
The amount due to Yang Dong Jun is unsecured, with a EENTHEREZFIBAERR 1538 R
maturity date of 1-year and an annual interest of 12%. FHEB12% °
The amount due to Gong Di Qing is unsecured, and HK$ JE X 1~ ¥ Gong Di QingZ ;ATE AEER » &
200,000 of this amount has a maturity date of 1-year F 200,000 TC1FRIE] « FFIE /5% © 21
and an annual interest of 5%, and the remaining amount A% B -

is interest-free.

The amount due to Zhiku Capital Investment Limited is JE % it F Zhiku Capital Investment Limited 2.
unsecured, interest-free and with a maturity date of 1- FIEREER 2ER1FEH -

year.

The amount due to Superb Summit International Group X TaEEERERBRARZRIBERE
Limited is unsecured, with a maturity date of 1-year and ER - 1FEH RF N ERE °

an annual interest of 5%.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The Group and the Company

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical

(BVI)

On 23 April 2009, pursuant to the acquisition of 61.27%
interest in [IN Medical (BVI) from Multico Holdings Limited
(“Vendor A”) and 38.73% from a group of minority
shareholders (“Vendor B”), the Company issued
convertible notes (the “Convertible notes 2009”) as partial

settlement of the acquisition consideration.

The principal terms of the Convertible notes 2009 are as

follows:

Date of issue

Aggregate principal
amount

Denomination in
multiple of

Interest rate

Adjusted conversion
price

Maturity dates

23 April 2009
HK$32,770,000

HK$200,000

Nil
HK$1.01

Principal amount approximately
HK$20,150,000 matured in
48 months from the date of
issue and the remaining
principal amount of
approximately HK$12,620,000
matured in 24 months from
the date of issue

29. TR EE

REBEARQF

I BB B &1l B8 2 (BVI) 2 100% #E 25

R-ZZNFMA=-+=H ' FMEMultico
Holdings Limited ([ & 75 /1 |) W B 51 &5 4%
BV)261.27%HEm kM —HLEREIE S
Z.1) B 38.73% s + AN RIFEIT AR
B ZEZNFURBRER]) 4355 WE
KE-

“EENFABBERBE T ZEFAT ¢

EITHEH —EENFEMA-+=H
PN R 32,770,000/ 7T

[k 200,000/ 7T 2 = &

BR i3

LRAEBMRE 1.0187T

Z|EA A 7N 4 %8 4920,150,0007% 7T
BE1TH BT 48 A A
IAH - ERASHED
12,620,000/ 7T B 317 B
HAkBET24 @ A R B HA
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For the year ended 31 December 2012 HE —ZT——F+ - A=+—HItFE
(Expressed in HK$) (LA 771 7R)

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

108

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI) (Continued)

(@)

Conversion period

The holders of the Convertible notes 2009 shall
have the rights to convert the whole or any part
of the outstanding principal amount into new
ordinary shares in the Company. The
commencement dates of conversion fall within the
period from 31 December 2009 to 30 June 2012.
The shares to be issued and allotted upon
conversion shall rank pari passu in all respects
among themselves and with all other ordinary
shares in issue by the Company on the date of
such allotment and issue.

Redemption option

The holders of Convertible notes 2009 shall have
the rights to redeem up to 25% of the principal
amount of the Convertible notes 2009 outstanding
at an amount equals to the principal amount of
the Convertible notes 2009. The commencement
dates of redemption fall within the period from 31
December 2009 to 30 June 2012. The Company
is not required, at the maturity of the Convertible
notes 2009, to redeem or pay any amount of the
Convertible notes 2009.

The Convertible notes 2009 contains liability
component, equity component and redemption
option derivatives. The holders’ redemption option
derivative is not closely related to the host contract
as the redemption amount is not close to the
amortised cost of the liability on the redemption
date. Holders’ redemption option derivative is
measured at fair value with change in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A

290. TTEAREE »
AEBRARQT @)

I BB B 71 B8 2 (BVI) 2 100% #E 25 (&)

(a)

“EENFARERERZFAABRE
K2 B ERE D ZXE@$$%%
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI) (Continued)

©

Profit guarantee

Certain members of Vendor B undertake to the
Group that the profits after tax shown in the
audited consolidated financial statements of
Hunan I[IN Medical, prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles for the year ending 31 December 2009
should not be less than RMB 8.5 million and will
compensate the Group for any shortfall, in
proportion of their respective shareholding in IIN
Medical (BVI) to the extent of an aggregate
17.31% thereof, between the guaranteed profit
and the actual profit.

Based on the audited financial results of Hunan
IIN Medical, the profit guarantee requirement is
fulfilled.

The directors of the Company have assessed the
fair value of the Convertible notes 2009 with
embedded derivative. At 31 December 2012, the
liability component of the Convertible notes 2009
is approximately HK$59,000 which is stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method
and the fair value of the derivative component of
the Convertible notes 2009 is approximately HK$
nil of asset (201 1: HKS$ nil) and nil of liability (2011:
HK$250,000). The effective interest expenses of
Convertible notes 2009 amounting to
approximately HK$103,000 have been recognised
in the consolidated income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2012.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

110

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical
(BVI) (Continued)

©

Profit guarantee (Continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the
valuation of the Convertible notes 2009 are as
follows:

Valuation of liability component

At the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value of liability
component was calculated based on the present
value of the initial recognition contractually
determined stream of future cash flows
discounted at the required yield, which was
determined with reference to the average yield of
notes with similar credit rating and remaining time
to maturity. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
rate of the liability component is 11.22%.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Acquisition of 100% interest in IIN Medical

(BVI) (Continued)

(c) Profit guarantee (Continued)

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative

Binomial model is used for valuation of holder

redemption option derivative. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

Stock price
KB

Exercise price

{16

Option life
ERELR

Risk free rate
ERRFIX

23 April 2009
ZBENE
MAZt+=H

HK$0.30
0.30%7T

HK$0.32

0.32%7

48 months
48{E A

0.70%-1.55%
0.70%-1.55%

31 December 2009
“EENE
+=A=+-H

HK$0.30
0307

HK$1.57 (adjusted
after the placing of
shares and share
consolidation)

1678 T (R ERH
RETRRA G
fHE)

40 months
4018 A

0.32%-1.25%
0.32%-1.25%
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 A Convertible notes:

On 9 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 A”) as settlement of other
loan which was due to the former shareholder of New
Beida as at 31 December 2010.

The principal terms of the CN 2011 A are as follows:

Date of issue

9 May 2011

Aggregate principal amount  HK$89,999,934
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

112

HK$0.50
36 months from the date
of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the Note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the Notes may be converted) into
Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof at any
time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding)
the fifth Business Day immediately before the
Maturity Date.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A

290. TTEAREE »

AEERAKRRAT &)

T —FEARREEA :
RoZ——ERANR  AAFBTI%ES
T ABRERE ([T ——FREEEAl) -
DENR-_E—TE+=-A=1+—BEMNH
b KBTS 2 E A B 2 o

“E-—FUBERRBAZ T 2ERAT

%77 B 5P —T——FHANH
Ae BT 89,999,934 7T

Bx 1%

LEBBRRKRE 0.5087T

Ep-Eh= B 317 B B 513618 A

EERBBEAERRBZTAHNEE (B
TERE) ZRINHMAMEREZEXAH
B 12 1) 27 H BB B AR 0.5078 TT I R 5%
REZ2MHEMBLREERS R
TEEBBEMHEBH RN - BX
it 2 © A H1,000,000% 7T (Br
FENEAERE - ZRBEZAEBERS
&/ 101,000,000% 7T - AIRIBE 2 256
(BARMESEE D) REEA S A
i) -



29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 A Convertible notes: (Continued)

(b)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
the discount rate of 7.20%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the CN 2011 A is approximately
HK$27,771,000 which is stated at amotised cost
using the effective interest method. The effective
interest expenses of CN 2011 A amounting to
approximately HK$1,666,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 29. TERERE ®
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The Group and the Company (Continued)
2011 B Convertible notes:

On 11 May 2011, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 B”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 B are as follows:

Date of issue 11 May 2011
Aggregate principal amount  HK$36,200,000
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50
Maturity date 6 months from the

date of issue

On 11 November 2011, the Company and the CN Holder
of CN 2011B have agreed to a 6-month postponement
of the original Maturity Date to 11 May 2012 (the “New
Maturity Date”) and so the related conversion period
during which the CN Holder can exercise the conversion
right attaching to the Notes shall accordingly expire on
(but excluding) the fifth Business Day immediately before
the new Maturity Date, that is, 4 May 2012. According to
the agreement, the Company shall bear an additional
compensation of 30% of the principal amount if the
Company fails to redeem the note with one month from
it maturity date.

(@) Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the Note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the Notes may be converted) into
Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof at any
time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding)
the fifth Business Day immediately before the
Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 B Convertible notes: (Continued)

(b)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
the discount rate of 4.48%.

On 11 May 2012, the Company has fully
redeemed the note with principal amount plus any
interest accrued in 2012 and 30% of additional
compensation, with an annual interest rate of
12%. Therefore, the Company has accrued such
loan payment of HK$51,070,000 as at year ended
31 December, 2012.

2011 C Convertible notes:

On 25 August 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon

convertible notes (the “CN 2011 C”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 C are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

25 August 2011
HK$19,500,000

Interest rate 3%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

HK$0.50
12 months from the
date of issue
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

116

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 C Convertible notes: (Continued)

(@

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the Note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the Notes may be converted) into
Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof at any
time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding)
the fifth Business Day immediately before the
Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the Notes before the Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

As the date of issue, the liability component was
recognised at fair value. The fair value is calculated
using cash flows discounted at a rate based on
the discount rate of 8.93%.

The noteholder converted all the principal of the
CN 2011 C amount to HK$19,500,000 at the date
of issue.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2011 D Convertible notes:

On 14 September 2011, the Company issued 3% coupon
convertible notes (the “CN 2011 D”), the principal terms
of the CN 2011 D are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

14 September 2011
HK$22,500,000

Interest rate 3%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

HK$0.50
12 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$1,000,000 on each conversion (save that if
an at time, the principal outstanding amount of
the Note is less than HK$1,000,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal outstanding
amount of the Notes may be converted) into
Shares in Board Lot or multiples thereof at any
time from the Issue Date at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.50 per Share up to (and excluding)
the fifth Business Day immediately before the
Maturity Date.

On 6 September 2012, the Company and the CN
Holder of CN 2011D have agreed to a 6-month
postponement of the original Maturity Date to 6
March 2013 (the “New Maturity Date”) and so the
related conversion period during which the CN
Holder can exercise the conversion right attaching
to the Notes shall accordingly expire on (but
excluding) the fifth Business Day immediately
before the new Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
The Group and the Company (Continued)
2011 D Convertible notes: (Continued)
(b)  lssuer early redemption option:

The Company shall not be entitled to early redeem
the Notes before the Maturity Date.

(c) Valuation of liability component

The fair value of CN 2011 D as at 14 September
2011 amounted to HK$21,908,000. The fair value
is calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate
based on the discount rate of 9.69%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the CN 2011 D is approximately
HK$22,412,000 which is stated at amotised cost
using the effective interest method. The effective
interest expenses of CN 2011 D amounting to
approximately HK$1,444,000 have been
recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes:
On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon

convertible notes (the “EICN-1”), the principal terms of
the EICN-1 are as follows:

Date of issue 20 December 2012
Aggregate principal amount  HK$20,600,000
Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price HK$0.50
Maturity date 36 months from
the date of issue

1 1 8 CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A

290. TTEAREE »

KEEBRARQT @&
—E-—FUBRREED : (&)
(b)  BATAIRRTRE RIS AE

RATEENREHE ZAIRAERR

ZE——FABREEEDR =T ——
Enﬁ+mamﬂiﬁﬁm9%om
/E,7|: ifﬁfﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁmbiﬁﬁfﬁ?ﬁaﬁ
IRIEQ.69% ) EEF EETFHE

RZEB—ZF+_HA=+—0H =%
—— FAIMREBDNBET SO A
22,412,000/ 7T © B EE I {E A ER
FIBOEIRB IR AT R - —F——45F
THRBREBEDNERFBM I
1Ampm@nam@§ T——F+
AT RLEFENGEERERE

e

—E- TR ERK RS TR
=g

R-T— _¢+_ﬂ_+5*$ﬁﬂ%ﬁ¥
BR1%0 A R RE (DkERR T RBRRR
H)' MlWTﬁhm%1miaﬁﬁw

aay
TR —E-—H+-H=+H
A B 20,600,000/ 7T

RS 1%

KREBRARE  0.50%7T

R B %17 A 8t 361E A



29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(a)

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
Note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the Notes may be converted) into Shares in Board
Lot or multiples thereof at any time from the Issue
Date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
Share up to (and excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the Notes Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

120

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

Issuer early redemption option: (Continued)

The convertible notes contains liability component
equity companies and redemption option
derivative. The holders’ redemption option
derivative is not closely related to the host contract
as the redemption amount is not closed to
amortise cost of the liability on the redemption
date. Holders’ redemption option derivative is
measured at fair value with change in fair value
recognised in consolidated income statement.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-1 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$17,288,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the EICN-1 is approximately HK$16,880,000
which is stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest
expenses of EICN-1 amounting to approximately
HK$41,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2012.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

Valuation of liability component (Continued)
Valuation of holder redemption option derivative

Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

31 December 2012

Stock price HK$ 0.19
Exercise price HK$0.50
Option life 35 months
Risk free rate 0.13%

2012 EICN-2 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN-2”), the principal terms of
the EICN-2 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$29,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
Note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the Notes may be converted) into Shares in Board
Lot or multiples thereof at any time from the Issue
Date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
Share up to (and excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)
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The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-2 Convertible notes: (Continued)

(0)

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the Notes Maturity Date.

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-2 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$24,337,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the EICN-2 is approximately HK$23,763,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of EICN-2 amounting to approximately HK$58,000
have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

31 December 2012

Stock price HK$ 0.19
Exercise price HK$0.50
Option life 35 months
Risk free rate 0.13%

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-3 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “EICN-3”), the principal terms of

the EICN-3 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$8,635,956

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
Note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the Notes may be converted) into Shares in Board
Lot or multiples thereof at any time from the Issue
Date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
Share up to (and excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the Notes Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 EICN-3 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©

124

Valuation of liability component

The fair value of EICN-3 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$7,247,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the EICN-3 is approximately HK$7,077,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of EICN-3 amounting to approximately HK$17,000
have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

31 December 2012

Stock price HK$ 0.19
Exercise price HK$0.50
Option life 35 months
Risk free rate 0.13%
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-1 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “ETCN-1"), the principal terms of
the ETCN-1 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$7,000,000

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
Note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the Notes may be converted) into Shares in Board
Lot or multiples thereof at any time from the Issue
Date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
Share up to (and excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the Notes Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-1 Convertible notes: (Continued)

©
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Valuation of liability component

The fair value of ETCN-1 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$5,875,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the ETCN-1 is approximately HK$5,736,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of ETCN-1 amounting to approximately
HK$14,000 have been recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

31 December 2012

Stock price HK$ 0.19
Exercise price HK$0.50
Option life 35 months
Risk free rate 0.13%
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-2 Convertible notes:

On 20 December 2012, the Company issued 1% coupon
convertible notes (the “ETCN-2"), the principal terms of
the ETCN-2 are as follows:

Date of issue
Aggregate principal amount

20 December 2012
HK$2,611,906

Interest rate 1%

Adjusted conversion price
Maturity date

(@)

HK$0.50
36 months from the
date of issue

Conversion period:

The noteholder shall have the right to convert the
whole or any part of the outstanding principal of
the Note in an amount of not less than
HK$500,000 on each conversion (save that if an
at time, the principal outstanding amount of the
Note is less than HK$500,000, the whole (but not
part only) of the principal outstanding amount of
the Notes may be converted) into Shares in Board
Lot or multiples thereof at any time from the Issue
Date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.50 per
Share up to (and excluding) the fifth Business Day
immediately before the Maturity Date.

Issuer early redemption option:

The Company may at its sole and absolute
discretion redeem the Notes (or any part thereof)
at its principal amount outstanding together with
Interest at any time and from time to time on or
before the Notes Maturity Date.
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

2012 ETCN-2 Convertible notes: (Continued)
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Valuation of liability component

The fair value of ETCN-2 as at 20 December 2012
amounted to HK$2,192,000. The fair value is
calculated using binomial tree models at a rate
based on the discount rate of 7.79%.

As at 31 December 2012, the liability component
of the ETCN-2 is approximately HK$2,140,000
which is stated at amotised cost using the effective
interest method. The effective interest expenses
of ETCN-2 amounting to approximately HK$5,000
have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Valuation of holder redemption option derivative
Binomial model is used for valuation of holder
redemption option derivative. The inputs into the

model were as follows:

31 December 2012

Stock price HK$ 0.19
Exercise price HK$0.50
Option life 35 months
Risk free rate 0.13%
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29. TRREE »
AEBRAQT @)

29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

TREREBE2AEFIRFANEBHEARNT

convertible notes for the year is set out below: WE ¢

The movement of the liability component of the

Financial

derivative-

liability
SRiTE Total
IR-8F @t
HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial

derivative-

Equity asset
component SRiTE
Exfs» IH-BE
HK$'000 HK$'000

Liability

component
a&EH2
HK$'000

Carrying amount

R-F-——%+t-A=1-H

TER

T

AL

TETL

T

at 31 December 2011 ZERE 92,922 8,041 - 250 101,213
Redemption of CB 2009 A3A BRI ZZZ N FF#REHAA (843) (360) - (47) (1,250)
Conversion of CB2009 A3B R ZZNFF#BKEHAB (3,510) (240) - - (3,750)
Settlement of CB 2011B EE T ——EMRRESRB (35,584) (616) - - (36,200)
Adjustment on CB 2011B HE-T——FaRREFBHE

interest (1,100) - - = (1,100)
Conversion of CB 2009 AdB R =ZTNERRREHAB (3,616) (246) - = (3,862)
Adjustment on CB 2009 A4B  BE-_ZENFABKES

interest A4BFIE (186) - - - (186)
Redemption of CB 2009 A4A BB —ZEAFE TR EHAA (868) (372) - (48) (1,288)
Adjustment on CB 2009 AdA  BE-ZTNFABKER

interest AGAT . (191) - - - (191)
Issuance of EICN-1 in 2012 T CERTKEER

HARFE 6,839 3,312 - 449 20,600
Issuance of EICN-2 in 2012 WNZE— ZF (TR
Wﬁﬁi‘%ﬁfz 23,706 4,662 = 632 29,000
Issuance of EICN-3 in 2012 it T € L]l S
mﬂiﬂﬁs 7,059 1,389 = 188 8,636
lssuance of ETCN-1in 2012 RZT— - FH{TKERK
MRS 5,722 1,126 = 152 7,000
Issuance of ETCN-2in 2012 R ZZ—ZEFTRENK
MR EE2 2,135 420 = 57 2,612
Effective interest expense ERABHY 3,353 - - - 3,353
Change In fair value NTEES - - - (157) (157)
Carrying amount RZB-—f+-A=+-H
at 31 December 2012 ZEREE 105,838 17,116 = 1,476 124,430
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Notes:

(@)

Set out below are details of Conversion of the
Convertible notes 2009 during the year 2011:

HBAH

Date of conversion

—F——%—A+WmA
—Z——F—A+/\H
—FE——FmWA+/\H

14 January 2011
18 January 2011
18 April 2011

Set out below are details of Redemption of the
Convertible notes 2009 during the year 2011:

BE A8

Date of conversion

—F——%—A+WmA
—E2——%—HATN\H
—E——FWmATNH

14 January 2011
18 January 2011
18 April 2011

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A

290. TTEAREE »
AEBRARQT @)
MIsE -

(@) TXEINR_B——FHB—_FTTNEFA

BRERHFE
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
ARREERSHE BOEBERYE
(adjusted due
to share
consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (BRZ=ZZZTNEF
BT Befn & BHE L A %)
3,750,000 3,712,871
3,154,106 3,122,877
4,726,441 4,679,633

(b) TYHIWR T ——FER ST NFA

BREE 215 ¢
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
ARREERSHE BOEBERYE
(adjusted due
to share
consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (BRZ=ZZTIEF
BT M in & OFHEH A %)
1,250,000 NilZ
1,000,000 NilZ
1,575,479 NilZ



29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(©)

The Group and the Company (Continued) AEERAQT B
BisE : (48)
Set out below are details of conversion of the Convertible () TXEINRZE——FHBR_TTNEFA
notes 2009 during the year 2012: B ER S ¢
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
Date of conversion HimAH AR EEAREHE BRITEERHE
(adjusted due
to share
consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (BRZ=ZZEZTNEF
P& I &1 & OFEH T %)
14 January 2012 —T——F—A+mA 3,750,000 3,712,871
31 July 2012 —T——FtA=+—8H 3,862,454 3,824,211
Set out below are details of Redemption of the (d) TXHINR=ZZE——FBR T NFA
Convertible notes 2009 during the year 2012: BRI ¢
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
Date of conversion FEE B ARREERSE BITEBREE
(adjusted due
to share
consolidation in 2009)
HK$ (AR=ZZETNF
B TT &0 & OFE H FH E)
14 January 2012 —FT——-—F—A+WmA 1,250,000 Nil &
31 October 2012 —E-——_F+A=+—H 1,287,480 Nil =
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29. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
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132

Set out below are details of Conversion of the CN 2011
A during the year 2011:

Date of conversion HiAH
29 July 2011 —E——F+A=-+AA
23 August 2011 —T——FNAZ+=H

Set out below are details of Conversion of the CN 2011
C and CN 2011 D during the year 2011:

Date of conversion LA

25 August 2011 —T——FNAZ+HEA

The Group’s convertible notes were valued by Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited, an independent qualified
valuer not connected with the Group, for each of the
years ended 31 December 2012 and 2011.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A
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AEERAKRRAT &)
MizE : (&)

S TXHINN -_B——FHBR T ——F7

B ZBRANFE ¢
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
ARREERSHE BITEBREE

(adjusted due

to share

consolidation in 2009)

HK$ (BRZ=ZZZTNEF
T Befn & BHE L A %)

30,000,000 60,000,000
30,000,000 60,000,000

() TXHIR—E——FHp—T——F7
MIREBECKR — T ——FAAREEDE

1
Principal Number of
amount of the Ordinary
convertible notes shares issued
EREBEANSHE BOTZBERHE
19,500,000 39,000,000

AERHE_ZT——_FR-ZF—F1+=
A=1T—RHLEFESFHNIRREZRHE
AEBMVEBENBE LA ERGERMPE
FHE AR ABHEITEE -



30. OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting date, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of office

premises and other asset, which fall due as follows:

REHEE

RBEAHTER  ARERRIEVER
HAth BB 2 TR REH R S A AR 2 KRR &
EREFBEIBBERDOT

The Group
AEE

2012 2011
—2—=F —F—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHETT
Within one year —i W 2,772 1,829
In the second to fifth years inclusive ERF (REEREMT) 1,587 984
Over five years ﬁELAL - -
4,359 2,813

Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for terms of
1to 5 years (2011: 1 to 5 years).

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities at the
end of the reporting period (2011: Nil).

32. PLEDGED OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, none of the Group’s
assets (2011:Nil) were pledged to secure the Group’s
banking facilities.

BODR—ZRF(ZE——%F:
ZFEREFMER -

31. FAREE

RREHR  AEBEBMEREESEAIABE
(ZZE——F : @|) o

32. EEEH

REBEIK - AEEREAE (CT——
) B FIE AR R ERTEE AR -

—ER%F)
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33.

134

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amount due from minority shareholder
of a subsidiary, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amounts due to directors, financial derivative,
convertible notes and other loan. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out
in note 5 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31
December 2012 in relation to each class of recognized
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade receivables and other receivables. In order to
minimise credit risk, management has certain monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables regularly at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are adequately made for
irrecoverable amounts. The credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are commercial banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies. The Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a
number of counterparties and customers.

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the
Group’s bank deposits. All the borrowings and deposits
are on a floating rate basis.

The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge
against the interest rate risk. However, the interest rate
profile of the Group’s net deposits (being bank deposits
and amount due from a related company less interest-
bearing financial liabilities) is closely monitored by
management.

At 31 December 2012, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points (2011: 50 basis
points) in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s (loss)
before tax and accumulated losses by approximately
HK$701,526 (2010: HK$93,343).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the reporting date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for the non-derivative
financial liabilities in existence at that date. The 50 basis
points increase/decrease represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”), for the years
2012 and 2011. Such exposures arise from online
professional training and multimedia education products
in currencies other than the Group’s functional currency
(i.e. Hong Kong dollar). All of the Group’s sales are
denominated in RMB for the years 2012 and 2011.

33.

BBREREERE RBE

(&

A = 2 B

AEEZHNXERTEREAEE 2 RITF
e AR RERENZEENEAS -

AREBEIWEAN B EBOTE T ARG DA K
% o M AREZFFFRE BIRTERK
R —RBEARRBEREF RERMEE) 2
MNEBLAEBREEYER -

MN-ZE——F+-"HA=+—8  HsfxL
B EF T RRS0REES (ZF——F : 50EE
2 (B EmEHRFTE) - BEBAEE
BRELAT (BB) KRB RE N R LH
701,526/8 T (ZF—Z 4 : 93,3438B70) °

btz BRRE AT TIEBRRN WS B HA =
HIREHMET - EEERANERBFEZHE
TESBMABEIFERRE - FIE LA TR
SOEEHBRNLERE BN TFERE HHIA
HIRANE 2 SRR RE BB 2 7P b - —
F-_FREREEETERON

SMNEE 2 B

RZB—ZFR-ZZF—FFE A5EHE
HHOZSHUERRREIESIRARE (AR
#]) - RERBIRNEREEZEE IR L EHE
HEERUAEENEEE (BIET) N2
B E AEBN _E——FR_T——
FFEEZ2HMIHEEIUAREE -

135

—Z— 3 - ANNUAL REPORT 2012



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e P HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2012 HZ — T ——F+ - A=+ —HILFE
(Expressed in HK$) (A TTHIR)

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

136

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The Group conducts its business transactions principally
in RMB. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not
significant.

Liquidity risk

For the management of the Group’s liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents considered adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors its working capital
requirements regularly.

The following table details the contractual maturities at
the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

On demand or
within one year

EEX
A-%FR
HK$'000

TiEx

At 31 December 2012 R=F-—#+-F=1-H

Financial liabilites ~ £R&E

Trade and other payables 2 5 [ E{t & 5 3 30,950
Bank overdraft BITEX 39
Other borrowings EfbfE 56,737
Convertible notes TRRRE 37,814

33. KEREERE RBEE
()
SINEEE B B ()

ARERE B AT EmINEER IR o AT B
BTIERIMNERR  LENFEERE R
HEAINERR

AEEIEAARBETHEBRS - A%
B EXEBRLTEA -

RBE SRR

REBAEE 2 RBES AR - NEBEERE
FEFREMAESSEHEANEEER/RE
F2KF - ARAREEHRETRES R
BERERERPDITE - EEESEHR
AREREEEESRLK -

TRAVNARERBERRNEHEESD
BN eRAEERESIAORNRAESR
mE (BRI X E ZF B0 B
SERBEXNFRAZEEBHFE

Total
undiscounted
cash flow
KBRS
RELH
HK$'000
THEL

More than one  More than two
years but less
than five years
WEN L
BEFR
HK$'000
THERL

Carrying
amount

year but less
than two years
—FhE
BWE SR
HK$'000
TR

EHE
HK$'000
TiEx

- - 30,905 30,950
- - 39 39
- - 56,737 56,737
68,024 - 105,838 105,838
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34.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

(Continued)
Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Company will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of
the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the associated
risks and take appropriate actions to adjust the Company’s
capital structure. The overall strategy of the Company
remained unchanged during each of the two years ended
31 December 2012 and 2011.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 24 November 2001. Under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme, 44,000,000 Options were granted on
27 November 2001 of which 40,000,000 Options were
lapsed and none of such Options were exercised or
cancelled, and there were 164,467 outstanding Options
(after adjustment for the share consolidation effected in
the year 2006, and the share consolidation effected in
December 2009 and the Open Offer effected in June
2010) granted and yet to be exercised under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme.

According to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, no further Option can be granted thereunder.
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

——F+ZA=t+—RHILtFE

34.

138

COMPENSATION (Continued)
Share Option Scheme

On 23 May 2011, the Company adopted a new Share
Option Scheme (the “New Scheme”) and the share option
scheme adopted on 24 November 2001 (the “Old
Scheme”) became terminated therefrom. The New
Scheme became effective on 23 May 2011 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date. Upon termination of the Old
Scheme, no further Options under the Old Scheme can
be granted but the Options which have been granted
during the life of the Old Scheme shall continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue and
the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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34.

35.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any employee of the Group or any other
persons who, in the sole discretion of the Board, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group to subscribe
for shares of the Company at a price determined by the
Board and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of offer of the option which must be a business day,
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of offer of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of offer of the options.

Since the adoption of the New Scheme on 23 May 2011,
no options have been granted.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
Acquisition of Everjoy International

On 20, December 2012 the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Everjoy International Media Corporation
(“Everjoy International”). Everjoy International is a
company incorporated in the BVI. Its principal business
is the distribution of event tickets to its sub-distributors
procured through Beijing Everjoy Cultural Communication
Co., Ltd.

The following table summarises the consideration for the
acquisition of Everjoy International, and the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised
at the acquisition date.
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(Continued)

Acquisition of Everjoy International
(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Everjoy International the date of acquisition were as

follows:

W B K S4B R ()

BRI R TR EER S E2
AFEMT :

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
AU RS R R R
AN |
HK$’000
FHIT
Purchase consideration: WE AR E :
- Cash paid -2 Re 2,000
— Convertible bonds (note (i) — AT AR E 2 (5L () 58,236
60,236
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ERRARANFKEBEE
acquired and liabilities assumed LFREEENSE
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEBERAE 8,839
Other payables H b3R8 12
Total identifiable net assets BB EEEEFE 8,827
Goodwill & 51,409
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash WHEEEMFReRRES
equivalents in respect of the acquisition are as follows:  ZH{EE B R ADAT
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrikEnRe RIReEEIEE 8,839
Less: Consideration satisfied by cash B LR e ERERE 2,000
Net cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —HEMEARMFRSRA 6,839

CHINA E-LEARNING GROUP LIMITED - FE@E&BEEBMARA A



35. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Acquisition of Everjoy International
(Continued)

Notes:

The fair value of the liability component of the CB was initially
recognised at the date of acquisition at HK$ 47,604,000 by
using the Binomial Tree model. This liability component was
subsequently measured at fair value of HK$47,720,000 as at
31 December 2012 in convertible bonds (Note 29), with change
in fair value of HK$116,000 recognised as finance costs in the
consolidated income statement. The equity component of the
CB of HK$9,363,000 which represents the value of the equity
conversion option of was recognised in the convertible bonds
reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The derivative option of HK$1,260,000 was recognized in
financial derivative liability at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the fair value of HK$1,265,000 as at
31, December 2012.

Acquisition of Everjoy Technology

On 20 December 2012 the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Everjoy Technology Development Corporation
(“Everjoy Technology”). Everjoy Technology is a company
incorporated in the BVI. Everjoy Technology is principally
engaged in the design, development and improvement
of a software system in an integrated environment for
the booking and management of event tickets under the
system being developed (i.e. the Ticketing System).

The following table summarises the consideration for the
acquisition of Everjoy Technology, and the fair values of
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed recognised
at the acquisition date.
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(Continued)

Acquisition of Everjoy Technology
(Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
Everjoy International the date of acquisition were as

follows:

W B K SR (@)

KEMBRWE RN A BRI EEREEBZ
NFELT

Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
AU RS R R R
AN |
HK$’000
T T
Purchase consideration: WERE :
— Cash paid —-B2fRe 8,000
- Convertible bonds (note (i) — AT AR E 2 (5L () 9,612
30,000
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets ERAARNNFAKEEE
acquired and liabilities assumed EFREEENEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEBEEE 987
Other payables H b fE I 5RI8 21
Total identifiable net assets BURNEEEETE 966
Goodwill = 16,646
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash WHEEMFReRRES
equivalents in respect of the acquisition are as follows: FEIEBEERADH
Cash and cash equivalants acquired i EmIRe IR EMEIE 987
Less: Consideration satisfied by cash (note (i)) Ao IR ERHRE BEEEa) 8,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FEHBARNFERESTA 7,013
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36.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Acquisition of Everjoy Technology
(Continued)

Notes:

The fair value of the liability component of the CB was initially
recognised at the date of acquisition at HK$7,857,000 by using
the Binomial Tree model. This liability component was
subsequently measured at fair value of HK$7,838,000 as at 31
December 2012 in convertible bonds (Note 29), with change in
fair value of HK$19,000 recognised as finance costs in the
consolidated income statement. The equity component of the
CB of HK$1,545,000 which represents the value of the equity
conversion option of was recognised in the convertible bonds
reserves in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The derivative option of HK$209,000 was recognized in financial
derivative liability at the date of acquisition and subsequently
measured at the fair value of HK$209,000 as at 31, December
2012.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

i) On 10 January 2013, the Company has fully repaid
the Judgment Debt. (Reference is made to the
announcements of the Company dated 19
September 2012, 14 December 2012 and 3
January 2013 in relation to the payment of the
Judgment Debt). Therefore all disputes between
the Company and Pacific Foundation Assets
Management Limited have been fully settled.

ii) On 18 January 2013, an Advertisements Agency
Agreement was signed between Xinhua Gallery
and the Company in relation to the cooperation
for advertising production business and
solicitation of advertisements broadcast business
on the LED Screen for a period of three years.
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36. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)
ii) (Continued)

On 7 February 2013, a Strategic Cooperation
Agreement was signed between CybEye, Inc. and
the Company in relation to the cooperation for the
technical development of mobile image social
network software and the provision of network
intelligence platforms based on image networks.
The cooperation term of the Strategic Cooperation
Agreement is one year.

The Company’s management has assessed the
aforesaid agreements and concluded there is no
impact on the financial statements of the
Company as at 31 December, 2012.

iii) On 18 February 2013, the special resolutions
proposed at the EGM were duly passed by the
Shareholders by way of poll. Reference is made
to the circular and the notice of the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company dated 18
January 2013 in relation to the Capital
Reorganisation.

37. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year’s presentation.
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iii)
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